
 London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

Public Services Reform Policy and 
Accountability Committee 

 

Agenda 
 

Wednesday 2 September 2020 at 6.30 pm 
 

This meeting is being held remotely  
You can watch live on YouTube: youtu.be/OAV4YN_TF_4 

 
 
 

MEMBERSHIP 
 

Administration Opposition 

Councillor Rowan Ree (Chair) 
Councillor Christabel Cooper 
Councillor Guy Vincent 
Councillor Zarar Qayyum 
 

Councillor Dominic Stanton 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: David Abbott 

Head of Governance 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 Tel: 07776 672877 
 E-mail: david.abbott@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
This meeting is being held remotely. If you would like to take part in the meeting 
please contact: david.abbott@lbhf.gov.uk  
 
You can watch the meeting live on YouTube: youtu.be/OAV4YN_TF_4  
 
 

Date Issued: 24 August 2020 

https://youtu.be/OAV4YN_TF_4
mailto:david.abbott@lbhf.gov.uk
https://youtu.be/OAV4YN_TF_4


Public Services Reform 
Policy and Accountability Committee Agenda 

2 September 2020 
 
Item  Pages 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

2.   ROLL CALL AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 A roll call will be carried out to confirm attendance and members will 
have the opportunity to declare any interests. 
 
Information on declarations of interest can be found on the next page. 

 

3.   MINUTES  4 - 11 

 To approve the minutes of the previous meeting. 
 

 

4.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION   

 This meeting is being held remotely via Microsoft Teams. If you would 
like to make a comment or ask a question about any of the items on the 
agenda, either via Teams or in writing, please contact: 
david.abbott@lbhf.gov.uk  
 

 

5.   COUNCIL OF THE FUTURE - TECHUK  12 - 48 

 Georgina Maratheftis, techUK’s Head of Local Public Services, will join 
the committee to discuss techUK’s Council of the Future guide. The 
guide includes practical examples of how digital can improve outcomes 
for residents and a series of questions for officers and other elected 
members to engender change and build capacity across the local area. 
 

 

6.   TECHNOLOGY IN LOCAL GOVERNMENT  49 - 64 

 This report looks at how the council can better use technology and data 
to provide services to residents. TechUK, the trade body for the UK tech 
industry, has produced a paper “Council of the future” recommending 
key areas that should be addressed by local authorities. These are 
discussed and areas of improvement identified. 
 

 

7.   OVERVIEW OF THE RESIDENT EXPERIENCE AND ACCESS 
PROGRAMME  

65 - 89 

 This report gives an overview of the Council’s Resident Experience and 
Access Programme (REAP) – a flagship initiative for driving 
transformation, improved access, reliability and quality across all front-
line services. 
 

 

8.   H&F WAY PROGRESS REPORT  90 - 144 

 The H&F Way is the Council’s internal culture change campaign where 
staff work together to shape how we do things to be at our best, by 
creating a movement for change by our staff and for our staff. This 
report updates the committee on the progress made to date and plans 
for taking the H&F Way programme forward. 

 

mailto:david.abbott@lbhf.gov.uk


 
 
More information on declarations of interest 
 
If a Councillor has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a particular item, whether or not it is 
entered in the Authority’s register of interests, or any other significant interest which they 
consider should be declared in the public interest, they should declare the existence and, 
unless it is a sensitive interest as defined in the Member Code of Conduct, the nature of the 
interest at the commencement of the consideration of that item or as soon as it becomes 
apparent. 
  
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in attendance and speak, any 
Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest or other significant interest may also make 
representations, give evidence or answer questions about the matter.  The Councillor must 
then withdraw immediately from the meeting before the matter is discussed and any vote 
taken. 
  
Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance and speak, then the 
Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest should withdraw from the meeting whilst the 
matter is under consideration. Councillors who have declared other significant interests 
should also withdraw from the meeting if they consider their continued participation in the 
matter would not be reasonable in the circumstances and may give rise to a perception of a 
conflict of interest. 
  
Councillors are not obliged to withdraw from the meeting where a dispensation to that effect 
has been obtained from the Standards Committee. 
 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

. 
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

 

 
 

Public Services Reform 
Policy and Accountability Committee 

Minutes 
 

Tuesday 28 July 2020 
 
PRESENT 
 
Committee members 
Councillors Rowan Ree (Chair), Christabel Cooper, Guy Vincent, Zarar Qayyum and 
Dominic Stanton 
 
Other Councillors 
Councillor Adam Connell, Cabinet Member for Public Services Reform 
 
Officers 
Rhian Davies (Director of Resources) 
Dawn Aunger (Assistant Director, People and Talent) 
Martin Calleja (Assistant Director, Efficiency and Zero-Based Budgeting) 
Emily Hill (Director of Finance) 
Kevin Caulfield (Strategic Lead for Co-Production) 
Peter Smith (Head of Policy & Strategy) 
Linda Jackson (Director of Covid-19 Response and Recovery) 
David Abbott (Head of Governance) 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 
 

2. ROLL CALL AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
The Chair carried out a roll call of members to confirm attendance. A full attendance 
list can be found above. 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 

3. MINUTES  
 
The Chair noted that a briefing paper on agency spend had been circulated to 
members. 

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 
RESOLVED 
The minutes of the meeting held on the 29th of January 2020 were agreed as an 
accurate record. 
 
 

4. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
No public questions were received. 
 
 

5. CO-PRODUCTION UPDATE  
 
Kevin Caulfield, Strategic Lead for Co-production, presented the report. He spoke 
about how the Covid-19 pandemic presented huge challenges for the Council and 
how it had an outsized impact on marginalised communities. From the beginning of 
the pandemic, H&F had taken action to ensure disabled people were supported. The 
Council had sent communications to reassure people receiving care that there would 
be no reduction in support, PPE would be available to carers, and restrictions on 
direct payments would be loosened. 
 
The co-production team had worked closely with mutual aid groups who provided a 
wide range of practical support to residents who were shielding or self-isolating. 
They would also be working with the Communities and Strategy team to help 
develop an action plan for the recovery. 
 
Kevin Caulfield also highlighted the acceleration of co-production across the Council 
– there had already been a number of good examples but there was still a long way 
to go. He felt it was really important for there to be more ownership and resilience in 
the community. 
 
The key areas of focus going forward were:  

 How to embed co-production across the Council 

 Exploring different ways of working with and engaging residents 

 Building strength and resilience in the community and voluntary sector 
 
The Chair thanked Kevin Caulfield for his presentation and asked how the Council 
was engaging with residents and what had been learned so far. 
 
Kevin said a broad cross-section of disabled people had been involved from the start 
(a number sitting on the Disabled People’s Commission itself) but there was still a 
long way to go as co-production began on larger, strategic areas of work like the 
Civic Campus project and the resident access programme. The intention was that as 
the work evolved, individual services would embed co-production practices. His 
focus was to create a framework to allow co-production to flourish across the 
organisation. 
 
The Chair asked what form the community engagement had taken. Kevin Caulfield 
said a researcher from Imperial College had been seconded to the team to lead on 

Page 5



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

engagement – including conversations, digital engagement, and community 
research. 
 
The Chair asked if there were any groups that were particularly difficult to engage. 
Kevin Caulfield said traditionally those most excluded from decision making were 
people in residential homes, refugees and asylum seekers. 
 
Councillor Zarar Qayyum asked what the key challenges had been over the past 
year (in addition to Covid-19). Kevin Caulfield said the key challenges were: 

 The need to mainstream co-production. Now that a number of practical 
applications were getting off the ground, he felt it would help other services 
see the benefits. 

 Building trust with residents and groups. There had been a level of uncertainty 
from the mutual aid groups in the beginning based on the traditional view of 
how Councils operated. 

 Managing and delivering an ambitious, ground-breaking programme. 
 
Councillor Qayyum asked who was overseeing co-production work at the Council. 
Kevin said there was an implementation group of Councillors, disabled residents, 
and officers overseeing the delivery of the work. 
 
Councillor Adam Connell, Cabinet Member for Public Services Reform, said he 
applauded Kevin Caulfield and Tara Flood for their work leading co-production, but 
they could only do so much by themselves. There were plans to launch a network 
across the Council to engage staff and help embed co-production more widely. 
 
The Chair asked if the current budget of £40k was enough. Kevin said the goal was 
to embed the principles of co-production across the Council and for services to 
incorporate the work into their own budgets. 
 
The Chair summed up the discussion and thanked Kevin Caulfield for his 
contributions. The Chair requested that the Council’s co-production materials be 
circulated to members. 

ACTION: Kevin Caulfield 
 
 

6. RESIDENT-LED COMMISSIONS  
 
Peter Smith, Head of Policy and Strategy, presented the report. He explained to the 
committee that the resident-led commissions were usually tasked with policy and / or 
service design in a specific area. They were each assigned a Cabinet sponsor and a 
Chair appointed by the Leader and Cabinet. The Commissions would ask for 
expressions of interest from residents to form the rest of the membership. 
 
Peter Smith noted that the first commission, on air quality, had 9 expressions of 
interest and the most recent, on the climate emergency, had over 65. Peter said this 
demonstrated that residents were becoming more aware of the commissions and the 
impact they could have. 
 

Page 6



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

Most commissions followed a similar process – first there was a literature review, 
followed by an open review for written evidence, then oral evidence was taken at 
public meetings, complemented by commissioned research and focus groups. 
 
There are currently 8 commissions in progress: 

 Police and crime 

 Civic campus  

 Arts 

 Climate 

 Women’s equality 

 Parks 

 Teaching 

 Cycling and walking 
 
The Chair asked how the commissions were resourced. Peter Smith said there was 
a broad research budget that the commissions could make use of but there wasn’t a 
defined budget for each one. As the number of commissions has grown, they’ve had 
to draw in resources from different areas of the Council. For example, the Climate 
Commission is working closely with the Climate Change Unit in the Council’s 
Environment department. 
 
Councillor Dominic Stanton asked how many people were on each commission and 
how they were selected. Peter Smith said there were selection restrictions for some 
of the commissions – for example the Parks Commission didn’t allow any members 
of ‘friends of parks’ type groups because they would tend to focus solely on their own 
parks. Peter said the optimum number for a commission was between 6 and 12 
people. The final selections were agreed with the Leader, the Cabinet sponsor and 
the Chair. The main selection criteria were a diverse range of skills and experience. 
Councillor Stanton noted that the commissions should also try to ensure a diversity 
of views. 
 
Councillor Christabel Cooper suggested that a new commission on racial justice and 
equality be considered. The Black Lives Matter movement and the news that Covid-
19 was having a disproportionate impact on BAME communities had highlighted a 
number of factors that needed to be addressed – including housing, employment, 
and health outcomes. Councillor Adam Connell welcomed the proposal. 
 
Martin Calleja, Assistant Director of Efficiency and Zero-Based Budgeting, added 
that phase 2 of the Resident Access Programme was focused on residents in most 
need and the Council wanted residents to be involved in shaping services to address 
inequalities. The programme could link in with any commission that was set up. 
 
Councillor Zarar Qayyum asked how recommendations from commissions were 
monitored. Peter Smith said the recommendations would usually be presented to the 
relevant Policy and Accountability Committee for comment then Cabinet for 
approval. A year after formal approval there was usually an evaluation exercise 
looking at what progress had been made. 
 

Page 7



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

The Chair summed up the discussion, noting the many successes of past 
commissions and the important programme of work planned for the future. The Chair 
supported the proposal of a new commission on racial justice and equality. 
 
 

7. COVID-19 RESPONSE AND RECOVERY  
 
Linda Jackson, Director of Covid-19 Response and Recovery, presented the report. 
She took a moment to thank Councillors, officers, residents, and the Council’s 
partners for the contribution they made to the borough’s response to the pandemic. 
 
Linda Jackson noted that the Council were early to step-up its response at the 
beginning of March. The Chief Executive appointed her as Director of Covid-19 
Response and Recovery and set up internal response structures to focus on three 
main areas: 

 Residents and the community 

 Workforce resilience 

 Partnerships and the economic response 
 
Some services had to close due to the requirement to lock down which was done 
quickly – within 8 days. A range of people across the Council were activated to 
enable a safe closure of services and to ensure people affected were still supported. 
 
The H&F Community Aid Network (CAN) was a huge success. Over 9000 people in 
the borough were shielding and the network provided them with food and support. 
The service was run 7 days a week with great support from staff. 
 
The Council’s response to the pandemic has had a massive financial impact with a 
grant shortfall of around £27m. Some allocations are coming in from Government but 
some of that money is quite strictly ringfenced. 
 
In terms of the workforce – productivity has gone up and sickness has gone down. 
The People & Talent department had done a lot of work engaging with staff and 
supporting them to be more agile and work from anywhere. They had also put a 
robust vacancy management system in place. 
 
Linda Jackson was working on the recovery plan with the Council’s senior leadership 
team while also planning for the possibility of a ‘second wave’. 
 
The Council had put a tracing and prevention programme in place in addition to the 
national ‘track and trace’ scheme. 
 
Public Health England had been complementary of the borough’s approach – 
particularly the use of automation, delivery of PPE, and early closing residential 
homes early. 
 
The Chair thanked all of the Council’s officers involved in the recovery for going 
‘above and beyond’ during the crisis. He noted how heart-warming it had been to see 
the community response with people all over the borough reaching out and offering 
help to their neighbours who were struggling. 

Page 8



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 
The Chair noted that at the beginning of July there was reporting that H&F had high 
instances of coronavirus compared to other London boroughs, he asked when 
officers became aware of those figures - and if there had been a good line of 
communications with Central Government. 
 
Linda Jackson said the figures came out as contact tracing started. There had been 
some difficulty getting data from Public Health England and some of their data was 
misleading. For example, a reported spike in positive tests included a number of pre-
existing tests. H&F was now back at low levels with around 2 or 3 positives per 
week. 
 
The Chair, noting the second wave in some parts of Europe and the local restrictions 
placed on Oldham, asked for an outline of measures if there was a second wave. 
 
Linda Jackson said data was now being sent through every day and the Council’s BI 
team have built a dashboard to monitor that data. 
 
The Council’s outbreak plans were published on its website. There were 8 plans for 
different areas – schools, care homes, hostels, factories, HMOs etc. The Council 
was clear about what actions it would take. At present one care home had been 
closed due to a worker and a resident testing positive. 
 
Councillor Dominic Stanton requested a breakdown of the income loss from fees and 
charges. He also asked if the uptick in productivity and improvement in sickness 
numbers meant the Council would change the way it worked in the future. 
 
Emily Hill, Director of Finance, said there was a full breakdown in the papers for the 
Finance Policy and Accountability. She said the breakdown included parking and 
enforcement fees and charges but also things like planning and licensing fees. 
Officers would circulate the full breakdown by email. 

ACTION: David Abbott 
 
Dawn Aunger, Assistant Director of People and Talent, said officers had been 
looking at staff resilience. Currently around 75 percent of staff were working from 
home and the learning from this period would inform decisions about the future of the 
workforce. 
 
Councillor Guy Vincent asked if enough attention was being paid to the economic 
crisis facing the borough. Linda Jackson said the economic impact of the pandemic 
had been on the Council’s radar throughout and was a major part of the recovery 
programme. The Council had worked hard to get grants out to local businesses to 
support them. Officers had also been working with local businesses – giving advice 
on how to reopen safely and reassure customers. The Council was also looking at 
introducing a social value model to support employment and training opportunities 
for residents. 
 
Councillor Christabel Cooper, noting the projected £27m deficit, asked what 
assumptions the projection was based on. She also noted that the Government had 

Page 9



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

promised to pay expenditure incurred by local authorities but assumed that wouldn’t 
cover any loss of revenue. 
 
Emily Hill said it was a forecast based on current spending and not assuming a 
second wave. The projection also assumed that the additional money the Council 
had put into the social care market to support it wouldn’t continue. She added that 
the Government had announced new funding to Councils on 2 July that included 
another £2m grant for expenditure and a scheme announced for recovery of income 
where Councils would bear first 5 percent, after which the government would fund 75 
percent. Based on early estimates H&F was expecting to receive around £8.5m on 
an income loss of £16m.  
 
Councillor Christabel Cooper asked if the impact on the price of housing and office 
space had affected the Council’s investment in the Civic Campus programme. Emily 
Hill said there had been a review of the scheme. The view was that the housing 
market will have rebounded by the time it was due to come on stream. 
Conversations were ongoing about the cinema lease and officers were taking advice 
on the office accommodation market. Though the picture was not as worrying as first 
thought as Hammersmith was still a desirable location for businesses. 
 
Councillor Zarar Qayyum asked how the financial impact on the Council affected the 
zero-based budgeting process. He also asked if the recovery board had 
businesspeople on it. Emily Hill said the Council was currently looking at the financial 
recovery and the zero-based budgeting process was a major element of that. 
 
Linda Jackson noted that the recovery board was internal and chaired by the Chief 
Executive. Its function was to look at the recovery across the Council. There was a 
local resilience forum that included business partners and also an industrial strategy 
board that included businesspeople. 
 
Councillor Zarar Qayyum asked if staff turnover had been affected by the pandemic. 
Dawn Aunger said turnover had been low. She agreed to circulate exact figures by 
email. 

ACTION: Dawn Aunger 
 
The Chair asked if there were any future plans for the Community Aid Network and 
the mutual aid groups. Linda Jackson said the Council was actively building on that 
work. A researcher from Imperial College had been seconded to the Council to focus 
on this – working closely with community on how to sustain support and build better 
relationships. 
 
 

8. DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 
Date of next meeting: 2 September 2020 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 
 

Meeting started: 6.30 pm 
Meeting ended: 8.25 pm 

 
 
Chair   

 
 
Contact officer: David Abbott 

Head of Governance 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 07776 672877 
 E-mail: david.abbott@lbhf.gov.uk 

 

Page 11



CounCil of the future
A digitAl guide for CounCillors

Page 12

Agenda Item 5



Council of the Future: A digital guide for councillors2 3Council of the Future: A digital guide for councillors

As A democrAticAlly-elected locAl  
representAtive And A driver of chAnge,  
you hAve the unique position And the  
power to mAke A difference to people’s 
lives, effecting reAl chAnge And creAting 
plAces where citizens wAnt to live,  
work And thrive. 

the guide includes prActicAl exAmples  
of how digitAl cAn improve outcomes of 
your residents And A series of questions 
for you to Ask your teAm, officers And 
other elected members to engender chAnge 
And build cApAcity Across your locAl  
AreA And plAce.  

Page 13



Council of the Future: A digital guide for councillors2 3Council of the Future: A digital guide for councillors

the CounCil of the future

A truly digital council will be more connected and integrated with 
citizens, communities and businesses reaping the benefits. Using 
digital to reimagine service delivery that is user-centric and meets 
users’ needs.

In adopting a smarter, more holistic, vision of the citizen and place, 
communities are motivated to come together with shared values and 
skills, and to drive a better quality of life for all. Citizens are at the 
heart of local problem-solving and decision-making to deliver better 
outcomes.

As a Councillor, you are able to build strong relationships with your 
communities and see high levels of engagement.

Local data is utilised confidently breaking down silos and creating 
new pathways for delivery of priority services and economic growth. 
Data is at the heart of decision-making, enabling predictive services 
and a shift to early intervention to manage demand better. Tackling 
cross-cutting challenges in a cost-effective and productive way.

the situAtion

Councils are faced with a range of challenges: from demographic 
change, environmental crime, housing and adult social care, to 
improvement of employment opportunities. Local government is 
unique in the number of lines of services it operates. Set against a 
backdrop of rising citizen expectations and budget cuts, this poses 
a significant public policy challenge. Managing demand and rising 
expectations at a continued time of financial constraints is no easy 
feat. As such, some councils are embracing and seeing digital as an 
enabler to doing things differently and deliver more efficient services 
and improve outcomes for citizens.

Page 14



Council of the future: A digital guide for councillors4

the CAse for digitAl

Digital is more than just technology. It is about the collaborative and 
user-centric approach that digital allows and the opportunity it brings 
to do things both smarter and differently.

The role of Councillor is a tough one, balancing multiple demands and 
roles whilst actively meeting the needs of your citizens. 

By placing digital at the heart of what you do, you can: 

 � Increase the efficiency of public service delivery, making funding 
and resource go further

 � Meet the key challenges facing your local area
 � Create new sources of revenue for the city region by investing in 

digital platforms and services which the private sector can use to 
innovate within your local area

 � Renew local democracy and trust by enhancing engagement 
levels via multiple digital channels

 � Engender a culture change in your organisation by leading by 
example how digital can transform ways of working

 � Improve satisfaction by enabling residents to engage with the 
council how they would with other services. 

A CounCillor in A digitAl CounCil

By grasping the digital agenda and having a digital-first mindset, you 
can play a crucial role in spearheading the transformation of the area 
into a ‘smart community’ where citizens are empowered to shape 
services and create the places where they want to live.

Technology has a facilitating role, helping elected officials and 
officers to deliver statutory services more efficiently and effectively, 
shifting processes from service delivery to public service outcomes.

Page 15



5Council of the future: A digital guide for councillors

teChnology CAn enAble:

• seAmless integrAtion of serviCes to improve  
quality of processes and outcomes, enabling greater  
self-service and empowering citizens to manage their 
own situation. This is particularly relevant in  
transforming health and social care services to deal 
with an ageing population. 

• utilisAtion of AlternAtive finAnCe models such as 
civic crowd-funding for community projects, building  
a greater sense of belonging and ownership of local 
areas.

• greAter trAnspArenCy And trust between loCAl 
government And Citizens through a more engaged 
approach to decision-making. 

• opening up of dAtA to unloCk insights for service 
design, enabling integrated and innovative solutions. 

• hAppier And more AttrACtive workplACes by  
enabling flexible working and generate savings through 
estate rationalisation as a result of remote working.  

• the CounCil being seen As modern And relevAnt,  
as well as inclusive to your residents because in a  
more digitised society citizens want to have the choice 
to engage as they would any other consumer service.

Page 16



Council of the future: A digital guide for councillors6 Council of the future: A digital guide for councillors6

CAse study
CounCillor As A user | newCAstle City CounCil

As part of Newcastle City Council’s transformation, Councillors were 
equipped with the digital tools to enable them to fulfil their job more 
effectively and work more collaboratively with colleagues. In 2015,  
the council removed completely their paper courier service (which 
was twice weekly delivery of papers to Councillor addresses) 
resulting in a £14k saving per year. All 78 Councillors were provided 
with a secure tablet device with the necessary collaborative tools and 
apps to access committee papers and collaborate on documents with 
each other. 

The council has also recently undertaken Facebook Live Q&A sessions 
with Councillors and are trialling use of the Poll Everywhere voting 
app for council committee meetings to avoid a significant capital 
investment in voting equipment, and providing all Councillor payslips 
using their online portal. In addition to the cost saving associated 
with this new ways of working, it helped to create a more dynamic 
and productive environment for them to work together and create a 
culture that embraces collaboration and innovation.

“We’ve set up a Microsoft O365 
Group so that the three Councillors 
for our Ward and our Community 
Coordinator can share documents 
quickly and effectively. This has  
really helped us to plan meetings 
more effectively, spark ideas from 
each other’s contribution and  
reduce the number of reply all  
emails with attachments. We also 
trialled an e-voting app in Planning 
Committee to test how this might 
be used for our Council meetings 
to reduce costs and administration 
– this was an ambitious step but 
showed how new technology can 
support the democratic process.”
Cllr Marion Talbot,  
Newcastle Councilcil

“I’d certainly encourage other 
Authorities to embrace more modern 
ways of working with Councillors. 
Moving away from the Courier in 2015 
was a brave step as the majority of 
other Authorities hadn’t done  
so, but being able to access and 
share papers electronically has been 
a real step forward. We’re supporting 
citizens to develop their digital  
skills, and similarly we have support 
networks in place for Councillors who 
don’t feel confident in their digital 
skills. Overall, encouraging Members  
to become more digital has helped 
support the broader digital ambitions 
we have for the Council and the City.”
Cllr Joyce McCarty, Deputy Leader, 
Newcastle Council

Page 17



7Council of the future: A digital guide for councillors

digitAl leAdership

A key component in creating the environment to enable successful 
transformation is culture and leadership. Councils need to build an 
understanding of digital into their organisation at the executive level, 
so that the leadership can recognise how and where council services 
can be transformed by new technologies. Digital leadership must 
be formalised in terms of its authority to instigate change within the 
organisation. The structure of formalised Digital Leadership could 
take the form of Digital Champions, Chief Digital Officer (CDO), or 
through the establishment of a Digital Board.

digitAl CAbinet portfolio

Digital is more than just ICT and websites. Digital needs to sit at 
the boardroom level as it underpins and works across all services. 
This should be recognised at Cabinet level with a dedicated digital 
portfolio which many councils, such as Essex, Camden, Hull and 
more already have.  By putting in place an empowered champion at 
Cabinet level, it shows a clear signal of the Councils’ commitment that 
digital and collaborative working are the new norm. 

The benefits that digital presents cut across all the portfolios and 
Councillors can work together with the portfolio holder and officers 
to articulate the digital vision for their area. They can also show how 
they can better utilise digital to transform the way they work and 
deliver improved outcomes for their areas of responsibilities as well 
as the residents in their ward.

Elected officials can also be at the forefront of the council 
transformation by asking who is in place at officer level tasked 
with driving the digital agenda, is there a council CDO or a regional 
CDO or a Digital Board?
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 18



Council of the future: A digital guide for councillors8

If the CDO has capacity and sits at board level, they will be able to:

 � Work collaboratively with council heads of services and senior 
management team to ensure a coherent digital strategy is in 
place, aligned and services integrated.

 � Champion smarter procurement. Working together with finance 
and procurement leaders to bring them on the digital journey, 
sharing best practice on transformation projects to avoid 
duplication and unnecessary waste.

 � Act as a main point of contact for industry. Develop early 
and meaningful engagement with the tech industry through 
innovation days and pitch tests, encouraging collaboration 
and experimentation of new innovations to deliver improved 
outcomes.

dAtA-powered CounCil And plACe

A clear commitment from elected officials to open up data and make 
decisions based on data is key to enabling resources to be more 
targeted effectively. This will help to reduce costs as well as allow the 
design of more predictive services that lead to better outcomes.

Opening up data also affords local businesses and start-ups the 
opportunity to interpret the problem and become suppliers of 
innovative local solutions. It is a great way to add value to the area, 
connecting the community and allowing citizens to use data to 
crowdsource insights and solve their own issues.

Page 19



CAse study
dAtA powered plACe | dAtA mill north

Data Mill North, which was originally started by Leeds City Council, is 
a platform to which anyone can publish open data to create the core 
infrastructure for open innovation in the region.

Leeds has created a culture of collaboration to solve challenges and 
prompted developers and companies to drive competition in the 
market and create apps/products needed by citizens. 

It has also improved efficiency and built new tools for the public 
sector. This has helped solve challenges from analysis of road traffic 
accidents to making information about empty homes or sports 
provision more accessible to the general public.¹ 

9Council of the future: A digital guide for councillors
Page 20



Council of the future: A digital guide for councillors10

innovAtive And inClusive

To build relationships with residents, it is important that citizens can 
engage in the way they prefer, this could be both face-to-face or 
digital. Digital can offer a seamless and practical alternative when 
face-to-face is not possible but it must be an inclusive approach.

Furthermore, as part of the digital portfolio and council digital 
strategy, elected officials can work with officers and community 
partners, from schools to libraries to the voluntary sector, to tackle 
digital exclusion and give residents more choice in how they engage 
with their public services.

Page 21



11Council of the future: A digital guide for councillors

CAse study
utilising emerging teChnologies to improve  
outComes 
Aylesbury Vale District Council, has introduced chatbots to boost 
customer service. The service learns from previous council residents’ 
conversations and can improve council response time to resident 
queries on services, such as council tax, benefit and bin collection. 
The adoption of new technologies such as Artificial Intelligence (AI) 
does not mean displacing a team or service but complementing it to 
truly be user-centric. We live in a more digitised society and citizens 
will expect to interact with their local public services as they do in 
their social lives. Chatbots, for example, can help provide a good 
customer experience by enabling citizens to engage with a local 
public service out of hours.

CAse study
inClusive digitAl trAnsformAtion

Folkestone and Hythe, is a seaside borough in Kent with a higher 
proportion of retirement age residents than the average for the South 
East. You would think that this would mean that the council would be 
less willing to embrace digital transformation, but the opposite is true. 
In 2017 the council began using an online event application process 
(EventApp) used by many councils in the UK. To gain efficiencies 
from the move online, the decision was taken to stop accepting 
manual applications entirely. After using the system for one year,  
Lisa Farrell, the events officer, was asked if applicants found the 
system easy to use. This was her response: 

“I would say that probably 10 per cent of my applicants struggled 
the first time that they used it. A majority of my applicants/event 
organisers are of the older generation and working with new 
technology is difficult for them. But as an authority going through 
digital transformation, this is the way forward.”

Page 22



Council of the future: A digital guide for councillors12

renewing loCAl demoCrACy

Turnout in council elections tends to be around a third of registered 
voters, apart from when there is a general election, when it is 
around two-thirds.² Traditionally local elections have a lower 
turnout but digital has an important role to play in helping to renew 
local democracy and build engagement. This could be through 
effective use of social media to be transparent about problems and 
achievements of the council or elected officials engaging directly with 
residents to get their feedback in service design. Furthermore, we 
are seeing more councils build user-centric design into their service 
delivery to really understand what the need is in the first place.

Art of the possible

The fast pace of technological change often makes it difficult for local 
government to be on top of what the latest innovations are that can 
help them reimagine the delivery of local public services. Councils 
are under continued pressure to deliver more for less whilst meeting 
rising expectations of citizens.

The digital opportunity goes far beyond websites and transactions. 
The real reward is how councils can do things differently and better 
for their citizens. From empowering citizens to self-help, renewing 
local trust and democracy, collaborating effectively and improving 
social outcomes.

By engaging with the technology market early, councils will be able 
to access the latest innovations and workshop through with partners 
what the art of the possible is. techUK provides a neutral environment 
and enables local government to access the breadth and depth of 
the market, from small to large players. It may be for a procurement 
exercise to ensure you get the best value or simply if have a concept 
you want to test.

Page 23



13Council of the future: A digital guide for councillors
Page 24



Tools What is it? Format Benefits

Industry Briefing • Opportunity 
for the public 
sector to 
engage with 
the whole 
of the tech 
market in 
a neutral 
environment   

• Providing 
the market 
with more 
information 
or an update 
on the public 
sector body’s 
strategic 
objectives or 
direction

• Roundtable, 
workshop, 
seminar or a 
briefing to a 
large audience  

• Informal 
networking

• Connect with a 
diverse mix of 
tech suppliers, 
large and small  

• Engage in a 
genuine two-
way dialogue 
with the tech 
market as 
part of an 
early market 
engagement

Concept Viability • In-depth pre-
procurement 
market 
engagement 
with the 
whole of the 
tech market 
in a neutral 
environment 

• Shape the 
design and 
roadmap 
for the 
transformation 
of specific 
procurement 
opportunities 
or projects in 
the pipeline

• Presentation 
from the 
procuring 
authority 
followed by 
Q&A and 
informal 
networking 

• Breakout 
sessions with 
suppliers 
discussing a set 
of questions  

• Industry 
feedback, 
compiled into a 
neutral report

• Connect with a 
diverse mix of 
tech suppliers, 
large and small 

• Get feedback, 
ideas, and 
better visibility 
of risks from 
the market on 
all aspects of 
the project, 
from tech to 
commercial, as 
part of the pre-
procurement 
process

loCAl government mArket engAgement tools

Page 25



Tools What is it? Format Benefits

Innovation Den • Opportunity 
for the public 
sector (and/
or primes) to 
seek innovative 
solutions 
and address 
real business 
challenges 

• Access to UK 
based SMEs 
and better 
understanding 
of the 
innovative 
technologies 
available on the 
market 

• Pitches from 
SMEs to a 
panel of 
public sector 
buyers (and/
or primes) on a 
predetermined 
topic or a set 
of challenges 

• Informal 
networking

• Access a range 
of innovative 
SMEs  

• Test new ideas 
in a risk-free 
environment  

• Identify 
potential 
innovative 
cost-effective 
solutions 
to business 
challenges

Partnering & 
Networking

• Targeted 
networking 
opportunity 
that offers 
councils and 
tech companies 
large and 
small the 
chance to pitch 
and identify 
business 
partners with 
innovative 
solutions for 
transforming 
local public 
services 

• Pitching is 
compulsory  

• Two minute 
pitches from 
participants on 
what they can 
offer  

• Informal 
networking 
with snacks 
and sips

• Identify and 
connect with 
a range of 
potential 
partners in 
the public 
sector market 
(companies 
large and 
small, and civil 
servants)

Page 26



CAse study
hArrow CounCil – CounCil of the future:  
prepAring for the smArt Communities projeCt 

In 2017 Harrow Council started a short-term project designed to create 
a culture within local government that incubates innovation. This was in 
response to continued financial pressures as well as the desire to-do things 
differently. This was a project championed internally by Councillor Niraj 
Dattani, and working with techUK identified the nine steps to get there:

Workshop outcome

Getting the right people in the room, and having an honest conversation

1 De-risk the concept of innovation

2 Demonstrate the relevance of technology to local authority service 
delivery

3 Seek innovations which respond to our challenges, rather than the 
other way around

4 Raise awareness around potential of innovation that could be  
applied across services

5 Prove theory of technology being able to play a role in  
addressing our biggest challenges

6 Keep councillors and officers aligned throughout the  
process

7 Work with the tech sector to demystify engaging with local  
authorities

8 Demonstrate scale and potential of local government as a market

9 Provide forum and pathway to implement technology  
innovations in Harrow Council

Council of the future: A digital guide for councillors16
Page 27



A key part of this was taking a challenge-led and user-centric approach. 
Harrow identified six services where technology had the greatest potential 
to transform outcomes. Working with the service leads and partners across 
industry, the Council articulated a series of challenge statements they were 
looking to solve. This was then used for a half-day workshop session at 
techUK that bought together the leader of the Council, elected members, 
officers and industry to workshop through ideas to reimagine what the 
service could look like.

workshop outCome 
 
Getting the right people in the room, and having an honest conversation 
around issues that mattered, with expertise on both sides, had made a big 
difference.

The council realised that each of the potential solutions could not be treated 
in isolation and a more joined-up way of working was needed. An Innovation 
Board was set-up comprising of key stakeholders and decision makers 
from across the council, including councillors, with the remit to encourage 
innovation in all areas of service delivery; bring together resource - internal 
and external – to support the development of ideas; and ensure ideas have a 
robust business case and are future-proof.

17Council of the future: A digital guide for councillors
Page 28



Council of the Future: A digital guide for councillors18 19Council of the Future: A digital guide for councillors

Questions 
This guide includes a series of questions for councillors to ask officers and 
colleagues to help them to engender change and build capacity across the 
organisation whilst also delivering the best possible service and outcomes to 
residents. 

vision  
 � What do you want digital to achieve for your local area and organisation?  

Digital can often be a source of confusion and something just seen as relevant 
for ‘ICT.’ A successful digital organisation has digital embedded throughout all 
services; with heads of services working collaboratively with digital leaders to 
develop user-centric services that improve outcomes.  

A first step will be to see what existing digital groups and digital strategies 
already exist within the council as well as activities that are already underway. 
For the activities underway, ask the relevant officer/portfolio holder ‘who else has 
done this, and what can we learn from them’ to avoid needless duplication and 
cost.

Technology can also transform the workplace, improve employee engagement 
and attract new talent. 

Ask your technical lead “is the councils infrastructure fit for purpose?” By 
creating a digitally-enabled council, you are able to bring all employees on the 
transformation journey and creating a culture that fosters innovation, which can 
spillover to service delivery in every area. 

Key questions to asK: 
 � Is the council embracing technology, such as cloud computing, for 

organisational transformation? Is there a council cloud adoption policy?  

Page 29



Council of the Future: A digital guide for councillors18 19Council of the Future: A digital guide for councillors

whAt is Cloud Computing?  
Cloud computing is an approach to computing which enables on-demand access 
to computing power and resources as and when required. Computing resources 
such as software applications, development platforms and IT infrastructures are all 
delivered as a service on-demand and charged as they are consumed.

This flexibility increases innovation, productivity and operational effectiveness. 
A recent Eduserv survey on local government cloud adoption found that 40 per 
cent of participants said they have a formal cloud adoption strategy in place,³  
Aylesbury Vale District Council were one of the first councils to move to the cloud 
and have attributed savings of £14 million after modernising its services and 
moving to the cloud.⁴ 

techUK has also produced a guide ‘Building Local Government Trust in the 
Security of the Cloud⁵’ to help councils deliver real benefits as well overcome 
any security questions they have by including a practical ‘Cloud ABC’ guide that 
outlines the questions to ask potential cloud providers and what the answers 
should be. 

 � How can data transform services whilst manage demand? 

Data should be at the heart of each organisation but often data projects at 
the local level are peripheral. That is why strong digital leadership is needed to 
champion the value that data can bring to the council and citizen.  
 
Having an elected official that acts as a data champion can be very powerful and 
influential. Working together with the data officers to bring service leads on the 
digital journey and explore how effective use of data can reshape services and 
manage demand. For example, the new Homelessness Reduction Act places a new 
duty on councils to prevent homelessness and by unlocking the potential of their 
existing data, local authorities can begin working more strategically to predict and 
prevent homelessness by identifying households at risk of losing their home. 

The Local Government Association (LGA) also has plenty of practical tools to 
guide you.⁶ 

Page 30



Council of the Future: A digital guide for councillors20 21Council of the Future: A digital guide for councillors

dAtA 
 � How can local data assets support economic growth? 

In opening up regional data, you will also be opening up opportunities for 
local suppliers to deliver innovative solutions whilst growing the local start-up 
community. 
 
Transport for London (TfL) is a fantastic example of an organisation releasing data 
to spur the development of apps to grow innovation and improve user journeys. 
TfL’s data, which included real-time feeds and transparency-oriented datasets, 
stimulated an app economy that is making a real contribution to London, saving 
between £15m-£42m through opening raw data to the app market, rather than 
developing all its apps in-house.⁷ 

There is also best practice from other regions. The MK Data Hub has been used in 
the Milton Keynes MK:Smart project to bring together datasets including local and 
national open data, data streams from both key infrastructure networks and other 
relevant sensor networks to support intelligent planning and usage of resources 
across city systems.⁸  

 � Who is currently in place to oversee data regulation, such as the new General 
Data Protection Regulation (GDPR)? 

The GDPR came into effect on 25 May 2018 and is a wide-ranging regulation that 
aims to strengthen consumer protection, enhancing trust and confidence in how 
personal data is used and managed. The GDPR includes provisions that promote 
accountability and transparency, and organisations will be expected to put in 
place comprehensive (but proportionate) governance measures, covering all 
forms of personal data. Consult the Information Commissioners Office for further 
guidance and best practice, where there is specific advice for local government. 
The implications of GDPR are widespread and all public authorities, including local 
government, are required to appoint an independent Data Protection Officer who 
can inform and advise your GDPR compliance.

 � What cyber security policies are in place? What training is available to  
build cyber resilience within the council? 

Cyber security is essential in ensuring the delivery of local public services and the 
security of data in maintaining the public’s trust. Local authorities must therefore 
have the capabilities, tools and resources in place to maintain their cyber 
resilience. The LGA has produced ‘A Councillor’s Guide to Cyber Security’⁹ which 
clearly outlines the various cyber threats and the questions to ask in an event of a 
cyber attack. The National Cyber Security Centre website offers useful guidance 
too.

Page 31



Council of the Future: A digital guide for councillors20 21Council of the Future: A digital guide for councillors

pArtnerships 
 � What mechanisms are in place to exchange thinking, best practice and 

innovation between the council internally as well as with other partners 
across local public service delivery and private sector?  

It is essential that partnerships are dynamic, factoring in the evolving nature of 
innovation and the differing speeds at which private and public sector respond. 
 
To ensure continued improvement, it will be fundamental that mechanisms exist to 
regularly share thinking and best practice, opening up channels for new solutions 
to address local challenges and council-wide ones. 

The Industrial Strategy highlights the Government’s commitment to innovation. 
Public sector can use its demand to drive innovation from industry, stimulating 
and accelerating the development of new and transformational products and 
services. 

 � What shared platforms are currently in place and is a digital ecosystem 
mapped out?  

If a comprehensive digital map does not exist, this should be a top priority for the 
councils’ digital leads as it will underpin the transformation that will happen across 
the local area.  

 � How would you like to procure digital services? How do you intend to 
run procurement to meet ever-changing technological trends and meet 
residents’ needs?

Procurement should be strategic and problem-led. Working with the tech industry, 
you should seek to effectively articulate the problem, adopting meaningful pre-
procurement engagement with the breadth of tech industry to understand what 
innovations are available as well as what the art of the possible is. See pages 14-15 
for the full techUK local government market engagement tools available.  

 � Is the Council making the most of centralised procurement frameworks such 
as the Digital Marketplace? 

Local Government can use the Digital Marketplace to find people and technology 
for digital projects. The Digital Marketplace is the online platform that all public 
sector organisations can use to buy what it needs to deliver great digital services. 

Page 32



Council of the Future: A digital guide for councillors22

skills  
 � What policies are in place to embed strong digital skills, and a culture of 

digital, across the council and local area?  

The Council can utilise the Apprenticeship Levy, which came in to force last year, 
to upskill existing staff as well as attract new talent into the organisation. 

Another national training opportunity is applying for a course on the Government 
Digital Service Digital Academy, which provides public sector with the skills 
needed to transform public services.¹⁰  

strAtegy 
 � What are the key outcomes you are looking to achieve? 

Put in place timeframes for a discovery phase, including user research events 
with the community, public sector partners and the tech industry to understand 
and articulate local outcomes. Identify key goals and indicators based on key 
outcomes which can then inform a realistic timeframe for when these should be 
achieved.  

By setting clear timeframes and milestones and publishing them you are being 
transparent with progress and evidencing that decisions are being made based 
on quality data.  
 

leAdership And Culture 
 � What skills do you need around you to succeed in your vision? Can these 

skills already be found in the council and how do you maximise and bring 
this together? 

A lot of the skills will already exist across departments and, as an elected official, 
you can unify this.  

You can also work with the council Chief Executive and digital leads to understand 
what skills and leadership must be put in place.

Page 33



23Council of the Future: A digital guide for councillors

referenCes

1. Open Data Institute (2017) Case study: Open data in Leeds. London, 
UK. http://theodi.org/case-studies/case-study-leeds 

2. BBC Article 2 May 2017 Council and mayoral elections: Are they being 
forgotten? 

3. www.eduserv.org.uk/insight/posts/2018/march/report-local-
government-cloud-adoption-in-2018/  

4. www.cloudpro.co.uk/sales-crm/6641/aylesbury-vale-district-council-
transforms-service-with-salesforce-community-cloud 

5. www.techuk.org/insights/news/item/10679-building-trust-in-the-
security-of-cloud dfa 

6. www.local.gov.uk/our-support/guidance-and-resources/data-and-
transparency/better-use-data 

7. odiimpact.org/case-united-kingdoms-transport-for-london.html 

8. www.mksmart.org 

9. www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/11.106%20Cyber%20
Security%20councillor%27s%20guide_v04_WEB_0.pdf 

10. www.gov.uk/government/groups/gds-academy

Page 34



techUK represents the companies and technologies that are 
defining today the world that we will live in tomorrow.

950 companies are members of techUK. Collectively they employ 
more than 700,000 people, about half of all tech sector jobs in the UK.

These companies range from leading FTSE 100 companies to new 
innovative start-ups. The majority of our members are small and 
medium sized businesses.

techUK.org | @techUK | #techUK

Page 35



Hammersmith 
& Fulham 
Public Service 
Reform 
Committee

Georgina Maratheftis| 02 September 2020

P
age 36



The tech trade 
association, 
representing 
850 tech 
suppliers. With 
two thirds 
being SMEs.

Who we are Mission

Helping to create the conditions 
for meaningful transformation 
and enable improved 
collaboration between industry 
and local government to 
ultimately improve the outcomes 
of citizens and create places 
where citizens want to live, work, 
thrive and feel safe.

P
age 37



A truly digital council will be more connected and integrated with citizens, and 
communities. Using digital to reimagine service delivery that is user-centric 
and meets users’ needs.

In adopting a smarter, more holistic, vision of the citizen and place, 
communities are motivated to come together with shared values and skills, 
and to drive a better quality of life for all. Citizens are at the heart of local 
problem-solving and decision-making to deliver better outcomes.

Local data is utilised confidently breaking down silos and creating new 
pathways for delivery of priority services. Data is at the heart of decision-
making, enabling predictive services and a shift to early intervention to 
manage demand better. Tackling cross-cutting challenges in a cost-effective 
and productive way.

Council of the Future Vision

P
age 38



By placing digital at the heart of what you do, you can:

• Seamless integration of services to improve quality of processes and 

outcomes and empowering citizens.

• Renew local democracy and trust between local government and citizen 

through a more engaged approach to decision-making.

• Happier, more productive and attractive workplace by enabling flexible 

working and generate savings through estate rationalization as a result of remote 

working.

• Creating a culture of collaboration and innovation to solve challenges by 

opening up data.

• Promoting economic and social growth through the innovative use of data

The case for digital

P
age 39



• Mass remote working.

• Improved collaboration internally and with partners across the place.

• Digital infrastructure to coordinate volunteers and support those shielding 

and most vulnerable.

• Keeping citizens connected to each other and services.

COVID-19 & Council digitisation

P
age 40



Start with the citizen and the 

community and the outcomes 

you want to achieve. PWC The 

Local State We're In 2019 report 

found half (55%) of council 

respondents agreed that 

councils should be more 

responsible for facilitating 

outcomes rather than delivering 

service solutions.

Don’t start with the tech, but the 
outcome

P
age 41

https://www.pwc.co.uk/industries/government-public-sector/local-government/insights/local-state-we-are-in-2019.html#reforming-public-services


• London Borough of Harrow developed a digital SEN transport solution to 
provide near-real-time information about vehicles and children 
(preventing unnecessary worry and customer contact). Utilising mobile 
working, analytics & new ways of working to make SEN transports 
scalable, safer & more efficient.

• Newcastle has used data and analytics to improve the way that children’s 
social work is delivered.

• Unlocking the potential of existing data councils can begin to work more 
strategically to predict and prevent homelessness by identifying 
households at risk of losing their home.

What’s the problem you are trying to 
solve?

P
age 42



What 
tech can 
enable

EMPATHY TRUST CONNECT

PRO-ACTIVE ENGAGING

P
age 43



P
age 44



The public sector needs to 
harness the expertise and 
innovation that SMEs can bring 
in order to ensure that public 
service delivery keeps pace 
with demand and 
expectations.

How techUK can help?

P
age 45



• @techUK

Art of the possible – workshop 
on harnessing digital to improve 
children service outcomes

We need to re-imagine how services 
can be delivered in order to give 
families the information they need 
and to empower individuals to 
access the right services at the right 
time.

So we held a workshop with local 
government – elected officials, 
heads of services and digital leads 
with industry to interrogate the 
challenges further.

P
age 46



You can help engender change and build digital capacity across your local 

area and place by:

- Be a digital champion & empower digital leadership at the executive level.

- Commitment to make decisions based on data.

- Sign the Ministry for Housing & Local Government Local Digital 

Declaration

- Take part in art of the possible sessions & spearhead a culture of 

innovation.

How can you help?

P
age 47



Georgina.Maratheftis@techUK.org

@GeorginaMarath @techUK

020 7331 2029

Thank You & Get 
in touch!

P
age 48



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

 
Report to:    Public Services Reform Policy & Accountability Committee 
 
Date:   02/09/2020 
 
Subject:  Technology in Local Government 
 
Report of:  Veronica Barella, Chief Digital Officer  
 
Responsible Director: Director of Resources 
 

 
Summary 
 
This report looks at how the council can better use technology and data to provide 
services to residents. TechUK, the trade body for the UK tech industry, has produced 
a paper “The council of the future” recommending key areas that should be 
addressed by local authorities. These are discussed below, and areas of 
improvement identified. 
 
Recommendations 
 

1. That this report be noted. 
 

 
Wards Affected:  All 
 

 

H&F Values Summary of how this report aligns to the 
H&F Priorities  

Building shared prosperity We will create a better connected and 
inclusive place where residents and 
businesses are supported to grow and can 
have their say. We will ensure where 
possible that our suppliers are investing in 
the economy of our Borough. We work with 
the third sector to support out residents. 
 

Creating a compassionate council Where our residents can go online, we will 
ask them to do so. Where they can’t we will 
make sure we offer our residents 
alternatives which are suited to their needs. 
 

Doing things with local residents, not 
to them 

Our information is consistent, easy to 
navigate and facilitates access.  Resident 
journeys have been co-produced, are 
responsive to feedback and are integrated 
with our partners. We will support residents’ 

Page 49

Agenda Item 6



online access through training programmes 
and grants to purchase digital devices  
 

Being ruthlessly financially efficient We use technology to automate and 
improve our services, making them cost-
effective to deliver. Greater savings will 
allow us to invest more in targeted services 
for vulnerable residents and the 
administration’s priorities 
 

Taking pride in H&F Technological innovation drives better 
outcomes for our community. 
  

Rising to the challenge of the climate 
and ecological emergency 

We are committed to driving down our own 
consumption of power and are taking steps 
to reduce our use of paper and other 
wasteful materials. We will work with our 
suppliers to further reduce the demands for 
energy from our digital services. 

 
Contact Officer: 
 
Name:   Veronica Barella 
Position: Chief Digital Officer 
Telephone: 020 8753 2927 
Email:  veronica.barella@lbhf.gov.uk  
 

 
Background Papers Used in Preparing This Report 
 
H&F’s Digital strategy – to be reviewed at October 2020 Cabinet (appendix 1) 
 

 
 

DETAILED ANALYSIS 
 

1. The council is embracing its data and technology as an enabler for 
transforming its services. As part of our response to the Covid-19 pandemic 
we have worked closely with our eco-system of partners including the London 
Office of Technology and Innovation (LOTI), London Chief Digital and 
Information Officers, the Camden Coalition of Healthcare Providers, the GLA, 
Imperial College, Microsoft, BT, Agilisys and Hitachi.   
 

2. The Resident Experience Access Programme (REAP) will modernise our 
public-facing services right through from the more transactional ones, which 
will be redesigned and automated end-to-end, to building a single front door 
for Social Care, Children’s and Housing. A paper is being taken to cabinet in 
October 2020 seeking funding approval. The programme will deliver 
substantial savings as well as significantly improving the experience for our 
residents.  

Page 50

mailto:veronica.barella@lbhf.gov.uk


 
3. The sections below look at each of the main recommendations from the 

techUK report summarising what already exists in H&F and where further 
development work may be requires. 
 

Digital Leadership  
4. The techUK report recommends that digital leadership is built in at its most 

senior levels and could include Digital champions, the Chief Digital Officer or 
the Digital Board. 
 

5. H&F’s Digital Board has been in place since January 2020 chaired by the 
CEO, supported by the Chief Digital Officer, and attended by the Strategic 
Leadership team. Its purpose is to 

 Provide strategic leadership, engage with council members, internal 
services and other relevant stakeholders to deliver transformation and key 
priorities 

 Provide regular assessment of the potential opportunities presented by 
digital technology and recommend ways to maximise the benefit from 
those opportunities 

 Showcase digital technologies and programmes and improve awareness 

 Help and support the upskilling journey of our people, as we become a 
digital council by nature  

 Identify and recommend proactive opportunities for collaboration with 
other councils and partners, and to proactively bid for external funding, 
e.g. from central government or the NHS 

 Drive solutions that break down silos and transform how we deliver 
services to residents, businesses and visitors 

 Help raise awareness and trends in other local councils or businesses 
which may benefit H&F 

 
6. The Digital Board has approved the Digital and Information Strategy 

(Appendix 1) and the strategy will be considered at Cabinet in October 2020. 
 

West London Alliance (WLA) – Digital lead 
7. H&F’s CEO is the Digital lead for WLA and is helping to formulate the key 

areas of digital focus for WLA. 
 
London Office of Technology and Innovation (LOTI) 

8. H&F joined LOTI in April 2020 and has participated in several initiatives, 
including around Covid response and sharing of data and challenging the DfE 
on their initial offer with laptops for vulnerable children. 

 
Digital cabinet portfolio  
9. The techUk report recommends that Digital sits at the boardroom level as it 

works across all services, and that a dedicated digital portfolio sits at cabinet 
level.  Digital services come under the remit of the cabinet member for 
Finance and Commercial Services. 
 
 

Data powered council and place 

Page 51



 
10. The report recommends that there should be a commitment to open up data 

and make decisions based on data.   
 

11. H&F has developed a Council wide data warehouse which powers reporting 
and analysis across a wide range of services in the Council. This platform has 
allowed the Business Intelligence (BI) Service to automate reporting, analysis 
and to use more advanced techniques such as predictive modelling.  H&F 
uses Power BI, a recognised leading platform for data analytics. The BI 
Service has created numerous performance dashboards including for 
Children’s and Social Care. The platform has been used by departments to 
create their own dashboards, such as in Finance and People & Talent.  
 

12. It is recognised that within these areas the Council is one of the strongest 
London LAs with particular regard for our data led response to the Covid-19 
pandemic. The BI team has received praise from national bodies such as 
Public Health England (PHE), local partner organisations such as the Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG) and NHS, plus a number of London Boroughs 
who we have advised and supported on various parts of the response such as 
creating Covid-19 dashboards and the use of automated calling technology to 
contact shielded residents. 
 
Next steps: 

 Look at how anonymised data could be shared publicly to support 
crowd sourcing of innovative ideas for our local issues 

 Investigate whether our data solutions could be commercialised  

 Further expand the use of data across Council 

 Investigate pre-designed toolkits like the LGA's to better respond to 
events like C19 
 

Innovative and inclusive 
 
13. The report recommends that councils should engage with residents in the way 

they prefer, either digitally or face to face. Additionally digital exclusion can be 
addressed by working through partners such as schools, libraries and the 
voluntary sector to give residents more choice in how they engage with us. 
 

14. The Resident Experience and Access Programme will deliver digital services 
to residents while maintaining a face to face service for those who prefer or 
need to engage with the council through this route. All task-based services 
such as those within Council Tax, Parking, and Permits will be redesigned to 
provide a more consumer-based feel to engaging with H&F so it’s easier for 
residents and businesses to interact with us.  
 

15. The new services will be co-produced with our residents for both the digital 
and face to face interactions. The REAP and the Single Front Door 
programme is looking at what the best strategy will be for delivering services, 
such as building community hubs with different subject matter experts co-
located in the best locations in the community based on data analysis of 

Page 52



where there is most need. Provision would be delivered through a mix of 
virtual and face to face settings. 
 

16. In the area of innovation, Residents’ Services is scheduled to implement a 
chatbot which will sit on our www.lbhf.gov.uk website to help answer 
residents’ queries and help reduce demand on the contact centre.  
 

Renewing local democracy 
 

17. To encourage improved participation in local democracy, the report 
recommends the effective use of social media by elected members.  
Additionally, it recommends use centric design in how residents interact with 
local authorities.  
 

18. H&F uses social media channels such as Twitter and Facebook to 
communicate with its residents.  H&F was the first council in the UK to partner 
with NextDoor as a means of joining up members of the community. By 
publicising the platform, it has created many virtual community hubs. The 
Council uses this channel to communicate directly to residents and to pick up 
issues.   
 

19. Members also use social media to communicate to constituents. There are 
regular articles by the Leader on the H&F Council website and a direct 
communication route through email to approximately 20,000 residents who 
are registered to receive updates.  
 

20. Additionally, we are evolving the digital offer for democratic participation. In 
response to Covid-19, Council meetings are currently conducted virtually 
using Teams to enable the important business of the council to continue.  All 
of the meetings are streamed to YouTube and are available subsequently for 
anyone who wishes to watch them.  
 

21. Virtual consultation meetings are also being held with residents.  Virtual 
meetings are a useful tool to increase the scope of democratic and resident 
engagement.  
 

Art of the possible 
 

22. The techUK report identifies that the fast pace of technological change can 
make it difficult for local government to stay on top of the latest innovations.  It 
flags that the real reward is how councils can do things differently and better 
for their citizens. techUK provides a neutral environment and enables local 
government to access the breadth and depth of the market. 
 

23. H&F’s Chief Digital Officer agrees that it can be difficult for local government 
to stay on top of technical innovation. This is not necessarily because of the 
pace of change, but rather because local government is made up of hundreds 
of different services which need to work together through a single digital 
strategy to transform how we operate and engage with our residents, local 
businesses and visitors to our borough. The added budget challenge affecting 

Page 53

http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/


all authorities means that investment must deliver the biggest transformative 
change.  
 

24. There are occasions when local authorities have proved themselves to be 
ahead of the curve. H&F adopted Microsoft Office 365 in 2018 as its 
collaborative platform. When the council needed to respond to the Covid-19 
pandemic this year, 80-90% of its workforce started delivering services 
remotely overnight enabled by the Tech-tonic rollout of laptops and the use of 
O365 Teams.  
 

25. H&F also responded at pace when it needed to support and protect its 
vulnerable residents. We have implemented a Community Aid Network (CAN) 
and Shield Customer Relationship Management system (CRM) which allows 
us to receive requests from residents for food, help with social isolation, and 
in the future will match volunteer capability with resident need. The system is 
being further developed to include local Track and Trace to enable us to 
efficiently follow through interactions with others and minimise the impact on 
our communities. The system will include heat maps and a form of handoff 
with other authorities who implement the same solution.   
 

26. The Council has worked with Imperial College London to implement the 
Yokeru solution which enabled us to contact around 10,000 of our shielded 
residents through an automated calling system with 13-15% responding and 
requesting help. This was felt to be a good return.  A cold call from a robot 
(albeit a newer friendly technology on the voice) is always going to have a big 
drop out but a lot of the shielding residents simply wouldn’t have required 
assistance without its use.  The ones that did reply tended to need something 
and it was a great way of finding that out and then doing something to help 
them. 
 

Other areas of innovation 

 May 2018 – all Councillors offered iPads and moved to digital working 
with papers shared through O365 which enables collaborative working 
and annotation of documents. 

 eVoting – H&F is currently investigating tools within O365 and also 
working with LOTI (London Office of Technology and Innovation) on best 
tool for eVoting in respect of Council meetings 

 Digital services and the Business Intelligence (BI) team is working on a 
bid with Microsoft and Hitachi to deliver a further development of the 
CAN/Shield CRM to manage the lifecycle of requests that come in from 
residents through to delivery by our resident volunteers and volunteer 
organisations; including feedback from residents on whether the request 
was fulfilled as needed and to earn what we can improve. 

 
What areas should H&F look at next? 
 

 Supporting residents at the edge of care to continue living 
independently at home through the use of Internet of Things (IoT) 
sensors and, simple tablets and network connectivity. This will deliver 
better outcomes for the residents as well as help to drive down our costs. 

Page 54



 
We are working with Imperial College London on a prototype focusing on 
residents with dementia. Easy to use devices are being tested with 
residents. 
 
Consider crowd-funding devices and network connectivity to improve 
social inclusion and using the improved buying power of WLA. 
 
Utilise the digital inclusion projects being run by 3rd sector organisations, 
such as Age UK 
 

 Use BI data to identify areas of improvement such as  
o heatmaps of residents at the edge of care to target those locations 

for local low cost WiFi coverage 
o Identify areas where technology can increase productivity of staff 

and improve the customer experience 
 
 Improve commercial engagement through our website to enable 

residents, businesses and visitors to easily buy our services and increase 
our revenue 
 

 Look at opportunities of smart cities 
LOTI looking at joining up for a consistent approach on smart cities and 
related governance 
 

 Investigate other forms of technology, such as LoRaWAN (Long Range 
Wide Area Network) which connects battery powered devices wirelessly by 
using radio waves. This technology can support smart cities initiatives. 
 

 Look at the impact and opportunities presented by the upcoming digital 
telephony “switchover” 
 

 Work with external organisations to ensure that all processes are 
transparent 
Some forms of technology can be seen as intrusive and the possibility of 
negative press could be an issue, when deploying in large numbers (e.g. 
when utilising passive monitoring technologies, such as those being 
deployed as part of ongoing Imperial DRI project) 
 

 Develop an ethical strategy for the use of automation. The Council has a 
role as a data controller and processor under Data Protection and GDPR 
legislation. As an organisation we need to understand where we are 
applying automated decision-making and, in line with regulation 22 of 
GDPR, make sure that we have the right processes in place to enable our 
service users to request human intervention or challenge our decisions. 

 
List of Appendices: 
Appendix 1 - Digital and information strategy 

Page 55



Our Digital & 

Information 

Strategy

P
age 56



P
age 57



We will enable the delivery of 

the council's priorities for 

residents, local businesses and 

staff through the innovative 

provision of digital and 

information services

Our strategy

P
age 58



Our Principles

1. We are digital by default, and no one is left behind

2. We take a ‘whole council’ approach and all our 

digital services deliver a common H&F experience

3. All our systems integrate to provide a 'single 

customer view'

4. We are curious and open to learning

5. We leverage the power of automation to deliver 

greater value 

6. Our data matters, we will protect it and harness its 

power

P
age 59



P
age 60



Data & Insight - what we will 

do 

We will work with you to 

develop a single 

customer 

view/ 

golden record

We will develop a 

common approach 

and language to 

manage our data

We will support the 

development of tools and 

solutions to drive the 

intelligent collection and 

use of 

data

We will deliver a clear 

security framework that

protects our data 

and supports new ways 

of working

P
age 61



Power of technology – what 

we will do 

We will equip you with 

the tools to put the 

power of 

technology at your 

fingertips

We will enable the 

delivery of 'Smart' 

services throughout 

our borough

We will keep abreast 

of emerging 

technologies to define 

the art of the possible

We will achieve 

service 

transformation 

through automation

P
age 62



Putting people at the centre –

what we will do 

We will work 

together to 

understand and 

eliminate pain points

We will promote a 

culture of continuous 

improvement

We will design and 

deliver digital and 

information services 

around user 

needs

We'll use 

technology 

to 'get it right’ 

the first time

P
age 63



Breaking down silos – what 

we will do 

We will develop the 

framework to 

achieve 

interoperability 

between systems

We will enable the 

delivery of 

frictionless 

digital services 

We will promote 

collaborative working to 

deliver the council's 

priorities

We will enhance 

our integration 

capabilities

P
age 64



 
 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 
Report to: Public Services Reform Policy and Accountability Committee 
 
Date: 02/09/2020 
 
Subject:  Overview of the Resident Experience and Access Programme (REAP)  
 
Report of: Nicola Ellis, Assistant Director Resident Services 
 
Responsible Director: Sharon Lea, Strategic Director for the Environment 
 

 
Summary  
 
The Council’s Resident Experience and Access Programme (REAP) is its flagship 
initiative for driving transformation, improved access, reliability and quality across all 
front-line services. The programme involves: 

 Improving the delivery of our services via digital means, giving more 
opportunities for residents to self-serve and introducing more automation 
and integration of systems to enable efficient processes; 

 Consolidating our contact centres and services where possible so we can 
deal with the residents’ whole enquiry at first point of contact and reduce the 
need for our residents to contact different services; and 

 Looking at the needs of our residents and their families and building a 
solution that addresses all their needs potentially working with other areas 
such as the voluntary sector. 

 
A summary of the impact of the changes for residents, local businesses, council 
partners, resident advisors, services areas and councillors is included in Appendix 1.  
 

This is an invest to save programme and is critical for the Council’s commitment to 
continue to be the best value Council in the country. Following initial work, the 
programme is now in an excellent position to deliver the biggest single saving to front 
line service delivery costs over the medium term.   The programme will resolve the 
relatively low level of digital access that residents of the borough currently 
experience, ensuring that there is digital inclusion and choice.  It is also learning from 
the Council’s success in delivering services and support through the Covid-19 
pandemic and is using this experience as an accelerator for transformation and 
delivery of a range of local priorities including tackling isolation and ensuring our 
services are easily accessible to disabled people. 
 
Arrangements to co-produce delivery of the programme have been put into place led 
by a dedicated resident implementation group.  Now that a significant level of 
preparatory work has been undertaken, residents can meaningfully lead the process.  
The programme will run up to April 2023 and the aim is to begin to deliver savings as 
early in the programme as possible. 
 
 

 

Page 65

Agenda Item 7



 
 

Recommendation 
 
That the committee note the programme scope and progress to date. 
 

 
Wards Affected: ALL 
 

 
H&F Priorities 
 

Our Priorities Summary of how this report aligns to the H&F Priorities  

Building shared 
prosperity 

A central aim of the programme is to provide high quality services 
that are accessible to all. The scope of the Resident Experience 
and Access Programme is wide ranging and incorporates key 
services that are vital to delivering shared prosperity including 
benefits, housing advice, adult education and employment 
services. Relevant support will be provided to residents that are 
vulnerable and/or excluded from shared prosperity   

Creating a 
compassionate 
council 
 

The first phase of delivery for the programme focuses on 
universal services to all residents, as well as some specialist 
support services such as Accessible Transport and Housing 
Benefit and Council Tax Support. The second phase will focus on 
more complex services that reflect specific needs. Demonstrating 
compassion in terms of both a caring approach and effective 
practical support to those residents that need it the most cuts 
across the whole programme.    

Doing things with 
residents, not to them 
 

The programme is in the process of establishing a dedicated 
residents’ implementation group that will ensure it is in the 
business of co-produced change. The group will be aligned to the 
work of all the Council’s resident’s commissions and wider 
system for resident engagement and involvement. Assuring 
accessibility of digital services, continued choice around 
telephone and face to face channels and the development of the 
‘compassionate council’ service offer will be led by this group.     

Being ruthlessly 
financially efficient 
 

This programme is about applying ruthless financial efficiency to 
systems and processes and developing a joined-up system for 
demonstrating compassion in all our contacts with residents, 
businesses and visitors. The business case for the programme 
sets out a clear more for less plan and substantial savings. This 
plan has been validated by a deep and specialist level of analysis 
and modelling.  

Taking pride in H&F 
 

Environment services including street cleansing, community 
safety and public realm management that are key to this priority 
are at the forefront of this programme.   

Rising to the 
challenge of the 
climate and ecological 
emergency 

This programme will contribute to a significant reduction in 
printing and use of paper by the Council due to moving from 
paper permits and forms to a fully digitalised process. The 
programme will seek to incorporate addressing the climate 
emergency where possible into every stage of the programme. 

 
Background  

 

Page 66



 
 

1. Detailed planning work to set out a clear business case and delivery plan for 
the transformation of residents’ services across the Council took place during 
2019.  An associated governance and delivery structure for a Resident 
Experience and Access Programme was established in June 2019 to assure 
the quality and viability of this plan and oversee successful delivery.  The 
programme is currently being led by the Environment Directorate with a joint 
management arrangement with Finance and the full involvement of all service 
Departments.  This reflects Phase 11 of the programme, which focuses on 
delivering the digital infrastructure and corporate customer services needed 
for the programme and transforming the universal and transactional services 
provided by the Environment Directorate.  Phase 2 of the programme is being 
led by Social Care and Public Health as the focus is on residents and families 
that need targeted support. The design work undertaken represents an 
unprecedented level of collaborative work across the Council.   
 

2. At every stage, co-production will be used to make sure that the new 
arrangements for residents’ access make it easier for all residents to interact 
with the council and get help and support. There are three main programme 
deliverables: 

 the biggest programme of digital development for front line service 
delivery the Council has ever embarked on 

 the bringing together and improvement of telephone and face-to-face 
customer services 

 the development of associated policies and our operating model for 
how our services will work together more closely to more effectively 
and efficiently meet needs in the future – including the Council’s key 
priority to demonstrate compassion to residents and families in need 

 
3. The programme is now ready to move to its delivery phase. It has completed 

detailed work to remodel service delivery for the main aspect of Phase 1 and 
plans to complete design work for Phase 2 by the end of October 2020.  The 
programme has set a target for digital delivery from its current low base level 
of 32% to 60% by April 2023 in line with the best performing councils for 
digital delivery.  

 
Context  
 
4. The Council has over 1.7m interactions with its residents and businesses 

annually, many of whom receive multiple services. At the time of the analysis 
the breakdown of how residents get in touch with the council was: 

 Digital 29% 

 Telephone 46% 

 Face to face 9% 

 Email/Letter 16% 
 
5. Residents are keen to interact with the Council in a modern, joined up and 

streamlined way.  Most now expect access online, wherever and whenever 

                                            
1
 Annex 1 provides a breakdown of the different phases and tranches of the programme. 

Page 67



 
 

suits them, as the norm. This is also key to the further delivery of efficiency 
savings over the medium term. 
 

6. In June 2019, a review of the way residents access and engage with all 
services that the Council provides was completed.  The review considered all 
channels: digital; telephone; mail; and face-to-face.  It concluded that there is 
very limited consistency in the way resident contact is managed across the 
Council and IT arrangements supporting resident access are complex and 
fragmented with costs high compared to other authorities.  
 

7. For example, there are multiple contact centres which deliver different levels 
of service and experience to residents. The digital offer is limited with many 
services relying on downloadable PDFs and emails to process service 
requests or paper and/or physical infrastructure. Residents and managers of 
services are unable to track requests digitally. There is an over reliance on 
non-digital channels for chasing and processing evidence leading to delays 
and inefficiency.  
 

8. This review also set out an overview business case for the programme and 
the Council’s Strategic Leadership Team mandated continued work to validate 
the business case with a further level of analysis and re-design work for the 
first and biggest tranche of service development that incorporates the biggest 
of residents’ services provided by the environment department.  
 

9. A summary of the structure and tranches of the programme is set out in annex 
1 to this report.  

 
Aims and vision of the programme 

 
10. The Resident Experience and Access Programme sets out a vision that not 

only improves access but also improves experience for residents, businesses, 
partners, staff and Councillors whilst also delivering substantial financial 
efficiencies.  

 
11. This is a transformational programme that will significantly extend the breadth 

and depth of services that can be delivered online and learn from Councils 
that have managed to do this well through the application of cutting-edge 
technology. In addition, uniquely to Hammersmith & Fulham, the programme 
focuses on ensuring equitable access for all residents and developing a new 
single front door operating model for delivering the Council’s ‘compassionate 
service offer’.  This will putting community-based solutions at the front and 
centre developing the assets that have been developed in responding to 
Covid-19.       

  
12. The programme has the following aims: 

 To provide a consistent approach and standard for resident access 
across all Council services. 

 To bring more Council services online so that residents can self-serve 
from initial contact to fulfilment and move towards digital service 
solutions. 

Page 68



 
 

 To provide an assisted digital offer so that disabled residents and those 
who are digitally excluded can continue to access the services they 
need. 

 Provide joined up, targeted and practical support for vulnerable 
residents that need our compassion and assistance.   

 To realise the expected savings and other benefits of the programme. 
One-off council reserves investment of £3.352m is required to deliver 
an estimated cumulative net saving of £9.281m by the end of 2024/25. 

 
13. The wider vision for the service is set out in pages 7 to 9 of Appendix 1.  
 
 
Case for Change 

 
14. An overview of the case for change is set out below. 

 
 

 
 

Strategic fit, 

building on 

progress so 

far

• The Council’s strategic priorities and business plan set a clear direction of how the Council would 

like to interact with Residents including improving digital technology to make it quicker and easier 

for Residents to contact the Council.

• Like many others, the Council is under pressure to be ‘ruthlessly financially efficient’. There is scope 

to drive financial savings by changing the way Residents access services because digital 

transactions are cheaper and there is scope to move more online. 

Variable 

Resident 

Experience

• There is no overall approach to Resident Access across the Council and current performance varies.

• It is difficult for Residents to navigate the Council’s ‘front door’: there are multiple telephone 

numbers, emails and postal addresses.

• Website content is often unclear or difficult to navigate, resulting in high volumes of calls into the 

Council

• There is limited or no ability to ‘track’ the progress of a service request, leading to high volumes of 

calls from Residents who are often highly stressed or frustrated.

Residents’ 

needs have 

changed

• Expectations of the way Residents access the Council’s services is changing.

• Residents are more willing and able to transact digitally.

• Resident choice for accessing the Council’s services is restricted as the Council’s digital offer is 

limited beyond viewing My Account, reporting issues, completing payment transactions and some 

simple applications.

Limited 

digital offer

• Many services still rely on e-forms, downloadable PDF forms or emails.

• Email or face-to-face channels are heavily relied on for processing evidence.

• Non-digital payment channels are regularly offered (e.g. cheques or card payments over the phone). 

Many services still rely on paper or physical infrastructure to deliver services which other Councils 

no longer use and generate additional cost and process (e.g. paper billing, paper permits, pay and 

display machines).

Fragmented, 

high cost 

Enterprise 

Architecture

• Resident Access is fragmented and costly to the Council. There are multiple forms packages in 

place across the Council which generate additional cost and inconsistency in the Resident 

Experience.

• The Council has recently migrated to Firmstep but is not currently maximising the rich functionality 

it provides, leading to duplication in workload and cost.

• Limited or no integration with Line of Business systems leading to substantial manual re-keying by 

staff

• Lack of innovation such as use of online web-chat facility to support with demand management.Page 69



 
 

 
 
 

15. The Council’s strategic priorities and business plan set a clear direction of 
how the Council would like to interact with residents, including improving 
digital technology to make it quicker and easier for residents to contact the 
Council. 
 

16. The continued impact of austerity requires the Council to constantly drive for 
further efficiency, with the Council always working to be ‘ruthlessly financially 
efficient’ with the use of resources. There is scope to drive financial savings 
by changing the way residents access services by moving more interaction 
with the Council online.  
 

17. There is no overall approach to or standard for, resident access across the 
Council and current performance varies, leading to variable and sometimes 
confusing resident experience. It is difficult for residents to navigate the 
Council’s current ‘front door’ and there are multiple telephone numbers, 
emails and postal addresses. Website content is often unclear, out-of-date or 
difficult to navigate, resulting in high volumes of calls into the Council. There is 
limited or no ability to ‘track’ the progress of a service request, leading to high 
volumes of calls from residents who are often highly stressed or frustrated. 
 

18. Expectations of the way residents access the Council’s services is changing. 
Residents are keen to transact digitally but they are restricted by the Council’s 
digital offer, which is limited beyond viewing ‘My Account’, a digital interface 
that allows residents to report certain issues, make some payments and 
complete some simple applications. There is further scope to derive additional 
value from the ‘My Account’ platform, which the Council is reviewing.  
 

19. In addition, many services still rely on paper or physical infrastructure to 
deliver services which other councils no longer use and generate additional 
cost and processes (e.g. paper permits).  
 

20. Resident access is fragmented and its enterprise architecture costly to the 
Council. There are multiple form packages which generate additional cost and 
inconsistency in the resident experience. 
 

Proposed operating model 
 
21. The new operating model is underpinned by a standard framework for 

handling and managing all future resident contacts so that there is a more 
consistent resident experience across services.  

Strategic fit, 

building on 

progress so 

far

• The Council’s strategic priorities and business plan set a clear direction of how the Council would 

like to interact with Residents including improving digital technology to make it quicker and easier 

for Residents to contact the Council.

• Like many others, the Council is under pressure to be ‘ruthlessly financially efficient’. There is scope 

to drive financial savings by changing the way Residents access services because digital 

transactions are cheaper and there is scope to move more online. 

Variable 

Resident 

Experience

• There is no overall approach to Resident Access across the Council and current performance varies.

• It is difficult for Residents to navigate the Council’s ‘front door’: there are multiple telephone 

numbers, emails and postal addresses.

• Website content is often unclear or difficult to navigate, resulting in high volumes of calls into the 

Council

• There is limited or no ability to ‘track’ the progress of a service request, leading to high volumes of 

calls from Residents who are often highly stressed or frustrated.

Residents’ 

needs have 

changed

• Expectations of the way Residents access the Council’s services is changing.

• Residents are more willing and able to transact digitally.

• Resident choice for accessing the Council’s services is restricted as the Council’s digital offer is 

limited beyond viewing My Account, reporting issues, completing payment transactions and some 

simple applications.

Limited 

digital offer

• Many services still rely on e-forms, downloadable PDF forms or emails.

• Email or face-to-face channels are heavily relied on for processing evidence.

• Non-digital payment channels are regularly offered (e.g. cheques or card payments over the phone). 

Many services still rely on paper or physical infrastructure to deliver services which other Councils 

no longer use and generate additional cost and process (e.g. paper billing, paper permits, pay and 

display machines).

Fragmented, 

high cost 

Enterprise 

Architecture

• Resident Access is fragmented and costly to the Council. There are multiple forms packages in 

place across the Council which generate additional cost and inconsistency in the Resident 

Experience.

• The Council has recently migrated to Firmstep but is not currently maximising the rich functionality 

it provides, leading to duplication in workload and cost.

• Limited or no integration with Line of Business systems leading to substantial manual re-keying by 

staff

• Lack of innovation such as use of online web-chat facility to support with demand management.

Page 70



 
 

 
22. Although every service within the Council is different, resident journey types 

are largely consistent and fall into a handful of categories:  

 Information, Advice & Signposting 

 Report it 

 Apply for it 

 Pay for it 

 Book it 

 Updates and Changes 

 Track 
 

23. The proposed operating model is based on a standard framework for these 
categories that the Council can use to increase resident satisfaction, create a 
more consistent experience, reduce cost and create change at pace within the 
organisation.  
 

24. The ‘Further Detail’ section, from paragraph 35 on, illustrates what how the 
programme and the new operating model will affect residents, businesses, 
partners, staff, services and councillors and what it means for each group in 
practical terms. 

 
 Benefits  
 
25. A new operating model for Resident Access will deliver the following benefits: 

 Resident choice 

 A better quality, more consistent, joined up and efficient service for 
residents 

 The ability to deliver more value and shape services by predicting and 
anticipating needs through improved analytics 

 Lower delivery costs 

 Reductions in failure demand 

 Process improvements and standards 

 Better use of resources and significant savings. 
 
26. Once an enhanced digital solution is available online, proactive channel shift 

initiatives can commence. As residents increasingly utilise online self-service, 
the volume of contacts coming into the Council that require a staff response 
will reduce enabling a channel shift saving. 
 

27. As residents’ requests for services will automatically update business 
systems, it is possible to generate efficiencies in the middle office processing 
team, for example removing re-keying applications into Line of Business 
systems, or validation by exception, thereby achieving a middle office 
processing saving. 
 

28. As services reach greater levels of digital delivery, it is possible to reduce 
non-FTE costs such as printing, postage or other non-digital infrastructure 
such as pay and display machines. 

 

Page 71



 
 

 
  

Page 72



 
 

Financial Impact 
 
29. Investment costs for delivering the programme are based on estimates from 

the externally appointed consultant and intelligence they have provided from 
their work supporting the delivery of similar programmes in other local 
authorities.  These costs are subject to further validation by services 
(particularly digital services) as part of the delivery phase of the programme.  
Savings levels have been set to provide a high level of assurance for delivery 
and any opportunity to extend them further will be taken. 

 
30. One-off council reserves investment of £3.352m is required to deliver an 

estimated cumulative net saving of £9.281m by the end of 2024/25. This 
incorporates an annual reoccurring saving of £3.414m from April 2022 
(subject to validation of all costs and the second phase savings). Investment 
costs will be capitalised where possible (e.g. IT costs), in order to keep 
revenue costs to a minimum and thereby minimise the call on one-off council 
reserves. 

 
31. The recent Covid-19 response experience is impacting positively on the scope 

and speed of the programme in two main ways.  Firstly, as an accelerator for 
channel shift and use of corporately delivered telephone and face to face 
services and secondly, developing the local Community Action Network for 
the provision of practical support at the local neighbourhood level. The 
Council’s Recovery Programme is supporting the development of Phase 2 of 
the programme through a cross-Council working group. 

 
Table 1: Overview Summary of the Programme’s Financial Costs and Benefits 

 
 
 

Page 73



 
 

32. Budgetary savings of £0.740m that relate to this programme are already 
included in the Council’s base budget for Environment services, relating to 
commitments made in prior years where savings have been delayed (resulting 
in an existing ongoing budget pressure).  Addressing the current 
overspend/budget pressure will be the first call on the new ongoing savings 
identified for Tranche 1A.  Existing committed savings relating to Tranches 2 
and 3 will be considered as part of the savings validation of those phases. 
New programme savings (over and above those already included in the 
council’s savings plans) will be factored into the council’s base budget as part 
of the annual medium-term financial strategy process. The validation of 
Phases 2 and 3 will also confirm the level of Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
savings and a corresponding HRA contribution to the required investment. 

 
33. The business case has been informed by benchmarking with local authorities 

that have successfully delivered programmes of this nature and associated 
specialist expertise of consultancy firm 31Ten who have supported 
development of the plan.  The Council is building its capability to undertake 
this sort of work and most of the design work for Phase 2 will be delivered in 
house. However, a procurement exercise is underway to provide for further 
consultancy support to ensure that the programme stays on track and where 
specialist expertise is needed e.g. getting the very best deal on new contracts 
for IT system development.     

 
34. The Cabinet Members for Finance and Public Services Reform are the Lead 

Members accountable for the programme.  Given the wide-ranging scope of 
the programme the option of a cross-member working group or regular 
dedicated review meetings should be considered to provide additional 
member direction, oversight and support.   

 
 
Next Steps  
 

• Funding agreed for interim resources – working on securing these for 
programme management, technology and digital development  

• Report to 12th October Cabinet  
• Delivery phase to commence October 2020 

  
 
Further Detail - the impact of the programme and new operating model 
 
35. For Residents: 

 
Each resident will have their own account, accessible at any time from their 
laptop, tablet or smartphone. Upon securely logging into their account, they 
will see information pertinent to them such as: 
 

 Their next waste collection date and their next street cleansing date 

 Their council tax bill and an option to make an immediate online payment 

 Any planning applications within their vicinity and the opportunity to 

provide feedback or raise an objection 

Page 74



 
 

 

If a resident wants to report an issue such as a fly tip or a planning 

enforcement issue, they can do so on a smart web form, which will display 

any existing incidents that have already been reported on a map view. If the 

incident: 

 

 Has already been reported, the resident can sign up for an e-mail or SMS 

alert when the Council have cleared the incident 

 Has not been previously reported, the resident can complete a web form 

and attach a photograph of the incident. The resident will immediately 

receive a reference number and timeframe by which the incident will be 

resolved.  They will subsequently receive e-mails or SMS alerts providing 

status updates until the incident is cleared.  

 

If a resident wants to make an application, such as for Housing Benefit, they 

can do so online by using smart web forms that will: 
 

 Validate the information they have entered 

 Save progress so they can complete the form later 

 Track the progress of their application from start to finish 

 Allow evidence and documents to be uploaded to support the application 

 

If a resident has difficulty completing the online form or finding the information 

they require on our website, they can speak to us through webchat. Simple 

enquiries through webchat will be answered with artificial intelligence but 

more complex will be dealt with by a resident advisor. 

 

If the resident needs help to complete the application, they can call or visit, 

and resident advisors will be able to see the progress made by the resident 

and help them complete the form. Once a benefit application has been 

approved, the resident will be automatically alerted by e-mail or SMS. 

 
Residents will also be able to sign up to, in accordance with data protection 

legislation, Council communications that they may have an interest in or 

notifications from Council partners such as the Police. 

 
If a resident contacts the Council by telephone or face-to-face they will speak 

to one of our resident advisors who will have access to the information and 

knowledge to be able to answer the enquiry at the first point of contact. This 

will be for multiple services and the advisor will identify all the services that 

the resident needs e.g. on moving into the borough. Where this is not 

possible, they will hand over to the relevant specialists, but this will be by 

exception and as agreed with the service. 

Page 75



 
 

 

36. For local businesses, this means that they will have their own account 
tailored to business needs. This can present pertinent information on logging 
on such as details of their business rates account and details about business 
seminars.  
 

37. For Council partners, this means that they can have their own account 
enabling them to log service requests on behalf of their clients. 
 

38. For resident advisors this means that staff dealing with customer contact 
will: 
 

 Have one system where they can manage and see all interactions with the 

resident. This will reduce the time it takes for a resident advisor to become 

multi-skilled across services 

 No longer double or triple handle information. They will use the same 

forms as the customer to report an issue raised via telephone / face-to-

face. These forms will integrate straight into service areas’ back office 

systems 

 Have access to status updates and therefore give the customer up to date 

information as to the progress of their request 

 Become data rich allowing analysis of customer reports to inform service 

improvement. 

 

39. For service areas this means services will: 
 

 Receive validated and complete information into their back-office system 

from the resident or resident services. This means they can deliver the 

requested service without the need to contact the customer for more 

information  

 Receive consistent and structured information across all contact channels 

(telephony, face-to-face and online will effectively use the same web 

forms)  

 No longer need to field follow-up or progress chasing calls. Residents will 

be given service levels at the point of contact and automatic status 

updates. If a resident still calls, resident services will be able to handle the 

request 

 Receive fewer duplicated requests through better information available on 

maps at the point of contact 

 Remove the need to double handle information or data as a result of 

integration. 

 

40. For Councillors this means: 
 

 Councillors will have their own Councillor Account that will allow them to 

Page 76



 
 

raise requests on behalf of residents in their ward, view when the request 

is due to be completed (i.e. the service level) and its current status  

 Be able to see all reported incidents, in line with data protection legislation, 

in their ward 

 As per the Resident Account, requests raised from the Councillor Account 

will be integrated and sent to the right service team and the right system. 

Councillors will therefore know their requests are queued and ready to be 

reviewed by the services. Councillors will pro-actively receive e-mail 

notifications or can log into their account to see an update, meaning they 

no longer need to ‘chase’ for an update  

 By being able to view all reported incidents within their ward, Councillors 

will be able to hold more meaningful, evidential based engagement with 

residents, businesses and the Council itself. 

 
 

Page 77



 
 

Annex 1: Structure and Tranches of the Programme 

 

P
age 78



Resident Experience and Access 

Programme

PSR PAC Meeting 

2nd September 2020

Full Business Case

1

P
age 79



Resident Access is the way Residents access and engage with all services that the Council 

provides. It involves all the ways Residents can contact the Council: Digital; Telephone; Mail; 

and Face-to-Face.

In February 2019, an outline business case (OBC) was approved which set out a vision for improving 

the way Residents access services. A second phase of work for a Full Business Case has been 

completed for approval, which looked at:

• Design of future operating model for Resident Access

• Design of Resident Journeys for Resident Services and Environment - 1m contacts (called 

Tranche 1A services).

• Engagement with other services with significant volumes: Environment (remaining services), 

Housing, Adult Social Care, Economy and Children’s Services – accounting for 0.7m contacts 

(Tranches 1B, 2 & 3).

• Quantification of benefits and investment costs to deliver the changes (including ROI analysis).

• An overall implementation plan to secure the benefits identified in this phase.

2

Resident Access Programme

P
age 80



3

Resident Experience Today

Telephone 

channel

Digital 

channel

Face-to-face 

channel

Email/letter 

channel

My 

Account
Payments

Revs & 

Bens CC

Rochdale

CC

Other CC 

x16

145 King 

Street

Housing 

area 

offices

Multiple 

email 

addresses

Multiple 

postal 

addresses

Multiples 

Eforms

487,351 contacts

29%
774,164 contacts

46%
160,368 contacts

9%
265,282 contacts

16%

Registrars

The Council is currently contacted over 1.7m times a year through the following channels.

Key findings from the review of Resident Access

• There is very little consistency in the way Resident contact is managed across the Council. 

• There are multiple contact centres which deliver different levels of service and experience to Residents.

• Currently there is a very limited digital offer - many services still rely on e-forms, downloadable PDFs and emails to 

process service requests.

• Digital fulfilment is limited - in many cases requests for service are not integrated into Line of Business systems 

leading to wide-spread re-keying.

• Many services rely on paper and/or physical infrastructure which many other Councils do not use (for example, 

paper permits, paper billing, drop off desks etc.).

• Residents normally can't track requests for services digitally resulting in many unnecessary calls into the Council.

• There is an over reliance on non-digital channels for chasing and processing evidence.

• The IT arrangements supporting resident access are complex, fragmented and high cost to deliver.

P
age 81



1. To improve the experience of residents in contacting the Council and deliver the whole enquiry at first 

point of contact.

2. To provide a common customer experience and standard for contacts across all Council services, 

supported by delivery first time

3. To bring more Council services online so that Residents can self-serve from initial contact to 

fulfilment & move towards digital solutions.

4. To provide an Assisted Digital offer along-side consolidated telephone and face to face services where 

needed 

5. Realise a range of financial, customer service and reputational benefits for the programme.

This will involve:

• Implementing largest programme of digital work H&F has ever delivered

• Delivering cultural change in how we interact with our residents/our customers – customer care, delivery right 

first time

• Offering modern services on-line – such as e-billing

• Offering telephone and tailored face-to-face services for those who need it

• Integrate systems with our ‘front door’ to reduce inconvenience for customers and improve efficiency

• Automating to improve convenience for residents

• Focusing existing resources and significant additional one- off investment. 

• Cumulative savings of £8.5m over 5 years – focusing our resources to support better demand management 

and income generation

4

Future Vision

P
age 82



5

Doing things with residents not to them

• A dedicated residents implementation group that will ensure we achieve the very highest standards of 

digital access for disabled residents and get the pace of change right

• Led by the resident and customer experience and what matters most to them including continued 

improvement around complaints, enquiries and customer care.  

• Access to the Council will become a much more individualised, simpler and smoother experience with 

customers having their own accounts which are accessible from laptops, tablets and mobiles.  

Ruthlessly Financially Efficient

• The programme will help meet RFE through digital development and bringing together services.   

• Break down siloed approach joining up to deliver savings and improve resident experience. 

Implementation Plan

• The first phase of the programme is the transformation of our large scale universal and 

transactional services

• The second phase will turn attention to delivery of more complex services, including access to 

housing, social care, planning services and adult education and employment services.

• This second phase of the programme will be essential to the evolution of what we provide as a 

compassionate Council, tackling unfairness and promoting prosperity.

Vision

P
age 83



Forecast benefits

• We have identified benefits of £1.7m 

per annum for Tranche 1A and we 

continue to forecast benefits of up to 

£2.35m per annum in Tranches 1B, 

2 and 3.

• Engagement work with Tranches 1B, 

2 and 3 services suggests there are 

significant opportunities for 

digitization and consolidation of 

resident contact. Care needs to be 

taken to ensure a consistent 

approach to benefit realisation.

• One-off investment of £3.4m to 

realise the benefits.

• Over a five-year period the 

cumulative saving is £9.3m using 

the top (most expensive) investment 

range.

6

Full Business Case Benefits

Annual 

recurring 

benefits 

Up to 

£4m
£3.4m

One off 

investment 

Net Savings 

Generating by 

end of 

Year 3 £9.3m

Cumulative 

5yr saving

Benefits and investments summary – from 2020/1

P
age 84



Future Operating Model

7

The Resident Access 

programme will 

deliver:

✓ A new operating 

model for Resident 

contact including a 

consolidated 

contact centre to 

support telephony 

and face-to-face.

✓ A significantly 

enhanced digital 

offer for Residents.

✓ New high quality 

Assisted Digital 

services focused on 

vulnerable groups.

✓ A new, enhanced 

and consistent 

Enterprise 

Architecture across 

the Council.

Digital

Our 

residents

Face-to-faceTelephone & Mail

Resident Account & Portal

Report it

Information, advice & signposting

Apply for 

it
Pay for it Book it

Track & Intelligent Outbound

Collaborative platforms, automation and case management

Updates & 

Changes

Service Delivery

Our 

Customers

Self-serve Assisted Digital

New Resident Access operating model for Hammersmith and Fulham Council

P
age 85



Current and Future Channel mix
The OBC set a target of 60%+ of Resident 

contacts to be digital channel in the future. 

Tranche 1A have high volumes of rules-based 

transactional volumes. Based on 

benchmarking, plans are to target a model 

where 80-90%+ of transactions are digital.

The diagram and table to the right show the 

target channel mix profile that was agreed for 

these services following the workshop process. 

In the future, we propose that telephone, face-

to-face and mail channels will all fall under the 

‘Assisted digital’ banner. This is because the 

aim is to have a consistent approach and use 

of systems for Resident Access, whether a 

Resident is self-serving online, or an officer is 

helping to do so through any of the other 

channels. 

For Tranches 1B, 2 and 3, the channel mix 

profile will be revised when they go through the 

next level of design. 

8

40% 26% 26%8%

73%
Assisted digital

27%

Channel mix for 

T1A based on 

18/19 volumes

Agreed target 

channel mix 

profile for T1A 

following service 

workshops

Service

Current Channel Mix Target Channel Mix

Digital
Non-

Digital
Digital

Non-

Digital

Council Tax 53% 47% 80% 20%

Benefits 24% 76% 60% 40%

Business rates 5% 95% 40% 60%

Parking 41% 59% 70% 30%

Permits 31% 69% 80% 20%

Cleaner greener 28% 72% 80% 20%

Accessible transport 0% 100% 70% 30%

P
age 86



Phase 2 and 3 Services - Design work underway 

• This phase of the Resident Access Programme will be sponsored by Lisa Redfern 

• Overview business case completed earlier this year has modelled indicative savings in the region of £2m from reduced 
delivery costs, re-commissioning and improved preventative benefits for this phase of the programme.  The 
development is also key to supporting a wider range of change and savings ambitions across the Council. 

• A Cross Council Working Group of senior managers has been established and is being supported by the Council’s 
Recovery Programme.   It has set out this high level design prospect.  

• Intelligence and site visits being gathered from key Council’s that we can learn from (Islington, Waltham Forest, 
Barking and Dagenham, Buckinghamshire, Wigan)

• The voice and know how of residents, particularly those with lived experiences of being in need  must lead this phase 
of the programme. Initial members of a dedicated resident implementation group have been recruited and a plan is 
being put into place to build on this through the wide range of boards and residents groups that are in place including 
our commissions, tenants and residents associations and third sector boards.   

• A technical specification sets out the detailed mapping, design and modelling work required and an in house team to 
undertake it has been confirmed.  The team will work to the above noted resident implementation group.  

• Light touch advice and validation of the work will be provided by the consultancy partner being recruited to 
principally support delivery of phase 1 of the programme. 

P
age 87



Provide easily accessible self service options, with intelligent forms to complete, signposting users to the right support services, 
promoting voluntary sector options and mutual aid groups. Contact  made through other channels will use the same triage service 
to identify the need and priority. First choice solution will be to facilitate access to services ‘ordinarily available’ in the community

One front door for multiple 
contacts 

ONE FRONT DOOR with a 
central record

STEP TWO: Triage and 
transactions

If not resolved through self 
serve and or direct contact is 
made contact centre/single 
front door team will 
endeavour to resolve and will 
hold the issue until solved.  
Will draw on links across the 
council to find the solution 
and will actively use data to 
see if other issues need 
resolving at the same time.

SAFEGUARDING/ICAT

Self serve;
Promote self service at 

first point of contact. All 
other channels will still 

remain available with no 
wrong front door and a 

joined up approach 
across multiple service 

areas 

Triage to refer 
safeguarding cases 

through to ICAT

immediately

With the 
professionals

Support needs with 
services provided by 

the council.
If the service is not 

available, escalations 
and management to 

find a bespoke 
solution 

Same technology 
with integration 
and self service 
updates – one way 
in, all recorded in 
the same place

Intelligent led outreach, use 
business intelligent led  data to 

adapt the service needs. Prediction 
and prevention with a high 

resolution rate at the first point of 
contact. 

Target Operating Model

P
age 88



Next Steps

• Funding agreed for interim resources – working on 
securing these for programme management, 
technology and digital development 

• Report to September Political Cabinet to review the 
programme and investment prior to October 
Cabinet 

• Delivery phase to commence October 2020 

P
age 89



 
 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

 
Report to: Public Services Reform Policy & Accountability Committee 
 
Date:  2 September 2020 
 
Subject: H&F Way Progress Report 
 
Report of: Dawn Aunger, AD People and Talent    
 

 
Summary 
 
The H&F Way is the Council’s internal culture change campaign where staff work 
together to shape how we do things to be at our best, by creating a movement for 
change by our staff and for our staff.  This report updates the committee on the 
progress made to date and plans for taking the H&F Way programme forward.    
 

 
Recommendation 
 
1. That the report be noted. 
 

 
Wards Affected: ALL 

 
 

 

H&F Priorities 
 

Summary of how this report aligns to the H&F 
Priorities  

Creating a compassionate 
council 

The H&F Way seeks to improve workplace 
behaviours, develop a healthy workplace, create 
an inclusive workplace, improve how we appraise 
performance and consider future reward and 
recognition initiatives.  It is an organisational 
culture change programme based on doing things 
with our staff, not to them. 

Taking pride in H&F The H&F Way’s purpose is to make positive 
changes to organisational culture that will in turn 
increase employee engagement, morale, job 
satisfaction and pride in working for LBHF 

 
Contact Officers: 
 
Dawn Aunger AD, People and Talent 
Veronique Vermeer, H&F Way Programme Lead, People and Talent 
 

 
Background Papers Used in Preparing This Report 

Page 90

Agenda Item 8



 
 

None. 
 
Appendix 1 - The H&F Way; Analysis of the H&F Way Staff Engagement” report, 
produced by The Campaign Company, October 2019. 
 
 

 
Detailed information  

 
1. A positive organisational culture is vital for our continued success. We are one 

of the few local authorities that have invested in the ‘Best Companies’ system 
for driving organisational development.  This has given us a very clear view 
on how we need to improve.  

 
2. The H&F Way Report, an independent report by The Campaign Company 

(attached at Appendix 1) sets out five key themes set in the context of the 
H&F vision, values and people strategy. These themes were identified 
through engaging with staff at drop-in sessions held at 3 locations across 8 
days in October 2019, 22 focus groups, and through an online survey. These 
themes are:  

 

 Behaviours that create a great place to work are genuinely and 
consistently understood, lived and recognised 

 An inclusive workplace where everybody’s needs are recognised 
and respected and all have the same opportunities to be involved in 
decisions and career progression and access to tools to do the best 
job that they can 

 A Healthy workplace to help make our workplace healthier, happier 
and more productive 

 Appraising performance where regular review meetings are 
meaningful & valued whilst simple and focussed on recognising 
contributions 

 Reward and recognition of everyone’s contribution in a way which 
makes them feel valued and is seen as fair, transparent, flexible and 
consistent 

 
3. The H&F Way culture change programme is a staff-led ‘change movement’ 

which focusses on the 5 themes and seeks to deliver on the following aims: 
 

 Highly engaged staff that express higher levels of satisfaction  
 Significant improvements with productivity, wellbeing, recruitment, 

retention and equality at work.   

 A greater understanding of our unique organisational character and 
identity – what makes us the best, what are our biggest challenges, 
how do we best tackle them and what makes us different and special 

 
The H&F Way is delivered in house rather than through external consultancy 
facilitation. People and Talent are funding a part-time H&F Way programme 

Page 91



 
 

manager post which has been created within existing budget limits as part of 
the service restructure in February 2020. 
 

4. The Chief Executive, Kim Smith, is the project sponsor for the H&F Way and 
provides strategic leadership support for enabling its success. Dawn Aunger, 
AD People & Talent, is the senior responsible officer accountable for the H&F 
Way meeting its objectives, delivering project outcomes, and realising 
required benefits.  All culture change proposals are reviewed at the H&F Way 
Programme Board.   
 

5. The programme board is made up of the AD, People and Talent, the H&F 
Way programme manager and the employee leads for each of the H&F Way 
themes. The H&F Way Programme Board meets monthly (with the exception 
of a 4-month gap due to Covid-19) to set direction, manage cross cutting 
opportunities, discuss the viability of the work plan for each group and across 
all groups, decide what to stop, start or continue and put forward ideas and 
proposals to SLT. The leads contribute to a monthly highlight report which is 
reported to the Major Programmes Board to ensure SLT oversight. 
 

6. The H&F Way has no end date as it’s about changing our culture, however, 
the first phase is expected to complete by December 2020.  Priority themes 
will then be reviewed taking account of feedback which was collected and 
analysed by the Campaign Company prior to the launch of H&F Way in 
October 2019.  

 
7. This report provides an overview of progress made to date and priorities for 

the continuing programme.    
 
Progress to date  

 
8. Following the H&F Way launch workshop on 26 November 2019, 5 action 

groups, aligned to one of the themes were established. The groups are made 
up of 68 staff volunteers of varying experiences and skills but with a similar 
passion to make a difference. Rather than setting roles within the group by 
traditional grade and title hierarchy, people selected their roles, including that 
of group leads, according to their passion, self-assessment of their skills and 
qualities and understanding of others in the group.  

 
9. New H&F Way staff volunteers are being encouraged to join groups via World 

Class Managers (WCMs), Future Leaders, the Managers’ forum, existing H&F 
Way group advocates and promotion at staff events such as “Grow, Reward 
and Give Back” held in February 2020 and the Black Lives Matter staff 
conversations and Inclusion Matters blog by the Chief Executive in June and 
July 2020.  
 

10. A “Let’s Talk Culture” workshop was held in January with the Leadership 
Forum (ADs and Directors) to engage them and identify what changes they 
could own and lead through behavioural nudges, quick wins and short and 
medium-term change activity. Feedback on the H&F Way and how to improve 
links with departmental priorities was sought from the Managers’ Forum (top 

Page 92



 
 

150) held in February. A key observation was how the H&F Way programme 
and the People Strategy align and relate.   
 

11. Until mid-March 2020, H&F Way workshops were run every 4-6 weeks which 
allowed all H&F Way group volunteers to come together to share progress, 
achievements, advice and support. Monthly meetings with group leads  
restarted on 15 July and the next whole group session is planned for 9 
September. 
 

12. Progress will be measured against the following 6 stages (see below). The 
process was drawn up in collaboration with the H&F Programme Management 
Office.   

 
 
13. During the early months of the pandemic (March-June 2020) the H&F way 

groups continued to network virtually and support colleagues online through 
MS Teams.  Although normal get-togethers were suspended each group still 
acted as a ‘staff voice’ and sounding board to assist the People and Talent 
team with the huge challenge of maintaining wellbeing and resilience of our 
workforce. 

 
14. Some of the contributions made by the H&F Way during the lockdown period 

include: 
 

 Appraising performance group – designed the new ‘Appraisal Lite’ 
performance conversation document to replace the performance 
management appraisal, given the time constraints placed on staff 
during the pandemic but the need, possibly more than ever, to continue 

Page 93



 
 

encouraging performance and development.  An online, fit for the 
future, appraisal solution will be designed for 2021. 

 Healthy Workplace group – researched a Healthy Workplace charter to 
inform best practice for building resilience and staff wellbeing. 

 Reward and recognition group – acted as a sounding board for People 
and Talent on special recognition for front line workers.  The group are 
involved in developing alternative options to the annual Star awards 
and developing virtual recognition solutions. 

 Inclusive Workplace group – created an equalities action plan in March 
that is due to be considered by SLT in August.  The group lead is 
liaising with the AD People and Talent on the establishment of 4 new 
race equality working groups following the Black Lives Matter 
conversations led by the Chief Executive. 

 Behaviours group – created a values-led behaviour framework. This is 
something we hope to take forward later this year so that managers 
and staff understand what is expected of them as an employee of H&F 
Council. 

 
Reframing the H&F Way due to Covid-19 
 
15. The 5 H&F Way working groups were stood down during the Covid-19 

response period, when staff were deployed onto critical service delivery only.  
Our third H&F way workshop has been rescheduled for 9 September to 
regroup and reframe the H&F Way working groups and to keep all our existing 
and new volunteers highly engaged.  Emerging group action plans will be 
considered to take the H&F Way forward and to realign the focus with the 
Road to Recovery (Covid-19) programme.  

 
16. Key elements of the workshop will include: 
 

 Building capacity within the groups to increase staff involvement  

 Identify cost & benefits and new implementation plans  

 Develop communication and staff engagement work to support culture 
change 

 Refine short, medium- and longer-term outcomes and success 
measures across all groups  

 

Developing a corporate strategy for delivering the full scale of benefits of the 
H&F Way 

 
17. The work of the H&F way groups are underpinned by the People Strategy and 

will continue to be informed by staff engagement surveys, the new ways of 
working (WoW) staff survey and staff wellbeing surveys.  The future H&F Way 
programme plan to support further cultural change as a result of Covid-19 and 
new ways of working is in development. 

 
Return on investment  

  
18. Staff see the H&F Way as an opportunity to make a difference, to have a 

voice in improving the employee experience at H&F and many see the 

Page 94



 
 

working groups as a development and networking opportunity. Trade Union 
representatives are fully supportive, and some have become active H&F Way 
group volunteers. 

 
19. Due to the operational pressures of Covid-19, the H&F Way programme 

manager has been redeployed to workforce efficiency project activity, 
reporting to the AD People and Talent to support the delivery of workforce 
efficiency initiatives and Covid-19 workplace readiness projects.  The 
programme manager retains a light-touch facilitation role for the H&F Way 
groups and coordinates the governance arrangements and monthly highlight 
reports. 

 
20. Independent monitoring and evaluation through informal feedback, pulse 

surveys and workforce analysis will inform our continued focus and pace of 
change. Measures to assess delivery of the programme are currently being 
developed. 
 

 
Appendices 
 
Appendix 1 - The H&F Way; Analysis of the H&F Way Staff Engagement” report, 
produced by The Campaign Company, October 2019. 
 

Page 95



  

 

Page 96



  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

Page 97



 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 98

https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/sites/default/files/section_attachments/260_59_hf_vision_a4_booklet_rev8.pdf
https://officesharedservice.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet/hf-hr/Pages/People-strategy.aspx


 

 

 

 

 

Page 99



 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

Page 100

https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/sites/default/files/section_attachments/260_59_hf_vision_a4_booklet_rev8.pdf
https://officesharedservice.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet/hf-hr/Pages/People-strategy.aspx


• 

• 

• 

• 

 

Page 101



 

“Behaviours are the root cause of everything – 

we need to get these right if we really want to 

be the best.” 

 

Page 102



Trust 

• 

• 

• 

• 

  

“Trust me to do my job in the way that I think will work – that’s what I was 

employed to do.” 

“Trusting my judgement and involving me in decisions about my work means 

we can work collaboratively and focus on getting the best results.” 

“It works both ways . . . if a manager is checking up on you when you’re 

working from home, you feel they don’t trust you . . . but you end up not 

trusting them either. It’s not healthy and it’s not productive” 

 

Page 103



Respect 

 

Open, honest and responsible 

“We should respect hot-desking. No-one should ever be told that they’re not 

allowed to sit somewhere.”  

“We share desks, meeting rooms, kitchen areas and other spaces – it’s just basic 

manners and respect for those who use them after us to keep it neat and tidy.”  

 

“Everyone should be respected, no matter what 

their role or status. 

Page 104



“We know that the Council has got to be “ruthlessly financially efficient”. So, 

let’s have honest conversations about what this means in practice. We can 

be part of the solution not the problem.” 

“ We need more open adult – adult conversations. Sometimes, we need to 

understand the reasoning behind decisions and not just be told the decision. 

We’re more likely to respect both the decision and the decision-maker then.” 

“If we were more open, people would have to take more responsibility and 

there would be less blame and shame thrown around.”   

“Honesty is the best policy AND the best way to behave.” 

 

“Actions to close the ‘say-do’ gap should start at the top of the organization – 

role modelling good behaviour would be a great place to start.”  

“Kim is really accessible. She walks around everywhere, takes time to chat to 

people and knows all of our names.” 

“It would be good if all the Directors fronted cross-organisational stuff –I don’t 

think I know anyone other than mine.”  

Page 105



 

• 

• 

• 

“The appraisal process would be a valuable use of everyone’s time if we 

had meaningful targets; regular feedback; more conversations and less 

paperwork; there was a focus on people’s development as well as 

performance; and if it was used as an opportunity to recognize and 

thank us for what we’ve done.” 

“Performance isn’t something that should be reviewed and considered once a 

year.” 

“It’s a tick-box exercise.” 

“It’s a bit of a joke. I haven’t had one in years. And I recently found out that 

Directors received a bonus based on the fact that all appraisals within their teams 

had been done.” 

“There’s got to be a process that allows us to reflect, monitor and improve. Good 

managers these types of conversations at monthly one-to-ones and not just at the 

appraisal meetings.”  

 

Page 106



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Page 107



• 

• 

 

Page 108



 

“Tell me when I’m doing well not just when I’m not.” 

“Say ‘thank you’ more often and reward me by showing trust.” 

“Let’s have fair and consistently applied processes (public and private) that 

don’t just recognise ‘top’ but also recognises and rewards ‘most improved’ 

and potential talent.” 

“Rewards don’t just have to be about money – although it would be nice if 

it were! But we know that the impact of austerity is still here so being able 

to work flexibly or having a Director say “thank you” for my work is 

sometimes just as valuable.”  

 

“We’ve recently introduced individual and team targets and I’ve used some 

money in my budget to reward these. I give a voucher to the top individual 

and a voucher for the top team to spend on a team lunch.  It’s acted as a real 

incentive and we’ve seen improvements in overall performance and targets 

as a result.” 

“We don’t even get a ‘thank you’ in our team.” 

 

Page 109



“We should embed a thank you culture across the organisation. Sometimes a 

gesture like that is all that’s needed to motivate someone or make someone’s 

day.” 

“Our Star awards are great but it’s too expensive and feels a bit exclusive 

as a result. I was so disappointed not to be part of my team’s celebrations 

but I know they had to keep an eye on costs.” 

“The system for nominating is unfair – I could nominate you and you could 

nominate me and that’s it , we’ve won.” 

“You see people being recognised and rewarded for doing their job rather 

than anything that appears to be over and above. There needs to be more 

transparency about how the awards are decided.” 

“It might be good to have awards that recognise achievement outside 

work – for example, in the community, for charities or local schools.” 

 

Page 110



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

Page 111



 

• 

• 

• 

“A healthy workplace is where the physical, social and cultural environment 

is cared for.” 

“The physical environment has an impact on our well-being: there should be 

common standards across each site to make sure we have the basics – a 

safe functioning place to work.” 

“A collaborative and supportive workplace where we look out for each 

other.” 

“We need to commit to and respect work-life balance. It will make us more 

productive in the end.” 

 

“Being able to work from home has really helped my stress levels – not just because 

it means I’m not stressed out by the time I get here but because I can work on 

reports in peace and quiet. There is no quiet space here [145 King Street].” 

“It’s really important that each site respects the staff kitchen / social areas. Having 

meetings in the Main Hall [Shortlands] during lunch-time means we don’t get the 

opportunity to have a break with our colleagues.”  

 

Page 112



“Managers are not applying the flexible working policies consistently – some 

managers approve all requests, others approve none. Some “check up” several 

times a day when their staff are working from home: others trust them to get 

on with it.” 

 

• Showing 

• Teams 

• Respect 

• Encourages 

• Staff 

• Success  

“We should be encouraging a collaborative and supportive workplace 

culture where people look out for each other.”  

“We should provide more “stress-management” solutions at work 

including yoga, Pilates, desk massages; discounted membership to the 

Virgin Active gym at Shortlands. etc.” 

“Let’s mean what we say when talking about work-life balance – let’s have 

a cut-off point for responding to out of hours e-mails for example.” 

“We need to do more fun stuff and encourage people to get to know each 

other better. We missed out on a ’social’ event when we moved to our new 

spaces earlier this year. Maybe we could make up for it at Xmas.” 

 

 

Page 113



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

Page 114



 

• 

• 

• 

• 

“An inclusive workplace is one where you are involved in the decisions that 

affect you and where your opinion counts.” 

“It’s about having the same access to opportunities to help you progress as 

your colleagues.” 

“It’s when you have access to the tools that can help you do your job.” 

“It’s a place where everybody’s needs are recognised and respected – and 

that can be cultural, intellectual, physical, mental and even self-esteem.” 

“It’s about knowing what’s going not just to be nosey but because it 

means we can support each other better.” 

  

 

Page 115



• 

• 

“We need to think and work like an H&F family. There needs to be more 

opportunities for us to get to know each other and respect each other.” 

“More flexible-working practices will help us get a better work-life balance. 

We’d be more productive as a result and probably nicer people to work with. It 

means I might also get to play sometimes with my colleagues too.” 

“There needs to diversity/equalities training for all - starting with managers 

and decision makers.” 

“Raising awareness of bias (both conscious and unconscious) will lead to more 

inclusive thinking, conversations and behaviours.” 

 “Let’s look at nurturing and promoting our own people rather than always 

looking at consultants / agency staff as short-term fixes. It will be cheaper in 

the long-run.” 

“Stuff like this is good . . . inviting us to have our say on how things are done 

around here. This is the H&F Way of doing things – asking, listening, taking 

action.” 

 

Page 116



• 

 

Page 117



 

• 

• 

• 

“I feel I’ve had conversations like this before and nothing’s happened. I can see that 

Kim is genuine about this and I’ll support her if she wants changes to be made. I just 

hope that we stick to it this time.” 

 

“Closing the ‘say do’ gap is going to be a priority if we’re going to get people believing 

we’re serious about change.” 

Page 118



 

 

 

 

 

Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



 

Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



 

Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



 

Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



 

Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



 

Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Council of the Future - techUK
	Presentation - Council of the Future

	6 Technology in Local Government
	Appendix 1 - Draft Digital and Information Strategy

	7 Overview of the Resident Experience and Access Programme
	Presentation - Resident Experience and Access Programme

	8 H&F Way Progress Report
	Appendix 1 - Analysis of the H&F Way Staff Engagement


